
           

Amended - 12/14/2020

* * * * PUBLIC NOTICE * * * *

NOTICE OF A CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
A WORKSHOP SESSION

OF THE CITY OF CORINTH
Thursday, December 17, 2020, 5:45 P.M.

CITY HALL - 3300 CORINTH PARKWAY

Pursuant to Section 551.127, Texas Government Code, one or more Council Members or employees may
attend this meeting remotely using videoconferencing technology. The videoconferencing technology can be

accessed at www.cityofcorinth.com/RemoteSession. The video and audio feed of the videoconferencing
equipment can be viewed and heard by the public at the address posted above as the location of the

meeting. The City of Corinth is following the Center for Disease Control Guidelines for public meetings.  

           
CALL TO ORDER:
 

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA

 
1. Review architectural services between the City of Corinth and TBG Partners to provide landscape

designs and other construction plans for a signature park and amphitheater in Agora.
 

2. Review an Interlocal Agreement between the City of Corinth and Denton County, concerning Denton
County's participation in Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2.

 
3. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed

session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.
  

 
ADJOURN WORKSHOP SESSION
 
*NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Regular Session of the Corinth City Council to be held at Corinth City
Hall located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The agenda is as follows:
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE:
"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".
 

                                             1

http://www.cityofcorinth.com/RemoteSession


CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

 
1. Consider and act on minutes from the October 22, 2020, workshop session. 
 
2. Consider and act on minutes from the October 22, 2020, regular session.
 
3. Consider and act on minutes from the November 12, 2020, special session.
 
4. Consider and act on minutes from the November 17, 2020, special session.
 
5. Consider and act on minutes from the November 19, 2020, workshop session.
 
6. Consider and act on minutes from the November 19, 2020, regular session. 
 
7. Consider and act on minutes from the December 3, 2020, workshop session.
 
8. Consider and act on minutes from the December 3, 2020, regular session.
 
9. Consider and act on an agreement between the City of Corinth and Zayo Group, LLC. to provide a

leased dark fiber connection between City Hall and the Public Works facility.
 

CITIZENS  COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be
limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and
may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if
you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed
to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of
the City of Corinth.

 

BUSINESS AGENDA

 
10. Consider and act on an ordinance approving a rate increase for the collection of Solid Waste in the

master fee schedule and providing an effective date.
 
11. Consider and act on an Interlocal Agreement between the City of Corinth and Denton County,

concerning Denton County's participation in Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2.
 
12. Consider and act on an amendment to Ordinance No. 19-09-05-32 relative to Tax Increment Financing

Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Corinth, Texas (TIRZ).

                                             2



 
13. Consider and act on a Resolution of the City Council consenting to legislation creating Agora

Municipal Management District No. 1.
 

PUBLIC HEARING

 
14. Conduct a Public Hearing to consider testimony and take action on an amendment to the City’s

Comprehensive Master Plan “Envision Corinth 2040” adopted by Ordinance No. 20-07-16-22, relative
to removing the designation Educational Place Type from the Future Land Use Map, and reassigning
parcels as Institutional/Public/Civic and Mixed-Use TOD Place Types and related amendments.
(CPA20-0001 Comprehensive Plan Amendment)

 
15. Conduct a Public Hearing and consider testimony and act upon a rezoning request by the applicant,

Skorburg Company, to amend the comprehensive zoning ordinance and zoning map of the City of
Corinth, each being a part of the Unified Development Code of the City, by amending two zoning
classifications from PD-51 (with a base zoning district of SF-4, Single-Family Residential (Detached))
and Industrial to Planned Development Zoning District with a base zoning designation of SF-4,
Single-Family (Detached) and MF-3, Multi-Family Residential totaling approximately ±49.798 acres
and comprised of two tracts; Tract 1 totaling approximately ±36.219 acres and proposed for
single-family residential use, and Tract 2 totaling approximately ±13.579 acres and proposed for
multifamily residential use.  Subject property is located on the north side of Walton Drive and west of
Shady Rest lane. 

Staff Presentation
Applicant Presentation
Public Hearing
Response by Applicant
Response by Staff

Take Action
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in
accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that
an item be added as a business item to any future agenda.

 

CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of
the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government
Code.

Section 551.071.  (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body
under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter
551.

a. Engage Richard Hayes as attorney
 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third

                                             3



person.

a. Being approximately 7 acres of land, more or less, located in the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract No.
1389, City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (H).

b. Right-of-way consisting of 1.56 acres located at 6881 South I-35E and along Dobbs Road within the H.
Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (M/B)

c. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs Road
within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (F)
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in
or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.

a. Project Agora
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney
on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.
 
RECONVENE  IN  OPEN  SESSION  TO  TAKE  ACTION, IF NECESSARY,  ON CLOSED SESSION
ITEMS.
 
ADJOURN:
 

Posted this 14th day of December 2020, at 5:30 p.m. on the bulletin board at Corinth City Hall.

______________________
Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas

                                             4



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: Contract for Architectural Services Between the City of Corinth and TBG Partners
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
Finance Review: Yes Legal Review: N/A
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development 

Infrastructure Development 
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement &
Proactive Government

AGENDA ITEM
Review architectural services between the City of Corinth and TBG Partners to provide landscape designs and other
construction plans for a signature park and amphitheater in Agora.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
To advance the community's vision for nurturing and sustaining a thriving downtown district with a complete mix
of uses --- Agora --- the City published a request to receive statements of qualifications from qualified firms to
design plans for the construction and use of a signature park and amphitheater on November 5, 2020. The deadline
to receive statements of qualifications from qualified firms was December 1, 2020. The City received interest from
six (6) qualified firms. Those firms were ranked on multiple factors including: (i) compliance with submittal
requirements; (ii) proposed approaches towards designing a conceptual plan that will yield a signature park and
amphitheater within the context of a mixed-use downtown setting; (iii) engaging and informing residents,
businesses and other community stakeholders on designing and activating a signature park and amphitheater; (iv)
expertise; and (v) availability to start and coordinate the project with other City projects and initiatives. Staff
reviewed the submittals from each firm, and invited two (2) finalists to interview on December 7, 2020.

After interviewing the two firms and reviewing their experience regarding conceiving and completing similar
projects, creating a memorable place and experience and capacity for engaging community stakeholders, staff is
recommending that a contract for architectural services be awarded to TBG Partners.

It should be noted that TBG Partners possesses extensive experience in park design and development. Some of their
projects include: 

City Place Urban Parks in Dallas, Texas.
Grapevine Convention and Visitor's Bureau in Grapevine, Texas.
Heritage Park in Irving, Texas.
Mayor Vera Calvin Plaza in Burleson, Texas.
Santa Fe Plaza in Temple, Texas.
Seaholm in Austin, Texas.
The Shops at Park Lane in Dallas, Texas.

In addition to the proposal and contract for architectural services, an overview of the firm and images of their
selected projects is attached.

RECOMMENDATION
The recommendation of staff is that the City Council approve the contract for architectural services between the

                                             5



The recommendation of staff is that the City Council approve the contract for architectural services between the
City of Corinth and TBG Partners.

Attachments
TBG Presentation 

                                             6



soq #1138  
city of corinth, texas 
design of signature 
park and amphitheater

interview

12/07/20

date

                                             7



city of corinth park and amphitheater

introduction

 we believe great design  
starts with listening. 

we listen to the people and the land.  
we weave these stories together  
and bring them to life in every detail  
to create meaningful places.

                                             8



city of corinth park and amphitheater

who we are

Mark Meyer, PLA
Principal in Charge

Ann Podeszwa
Community Engagement 
and Outreach

Craig Melde, AIA
Senior Principal,  
Design

Jonathan Dunbar, PLA
Project Manager

Anne Stimmel, AIA
Senior Associate,  
Project Architect

Grayson Hughes, PE
Market Leader

Architexas Architexas WGITBGTBGTBG

                                             9



what if we could increase 
community engagement, 
social interaction, creativity 
and town pride?

city of corinth park and amphitheater

who we are

                                             10



the inspiration to collectively  
reimagine and reinvent public spaces

+

the fortification of connections  
between people and the places they share 

city of corinth park and amphitheater

placemaking

                                             11



placemaking

principles

01_ 

accessible and well-
connected to other 
important places

02_ 

comfortable and 
projects a favorable 
image

03_ 

attracts people to 
participate in activities

04_ 

sociable environments 
in which people want 
to gather and revisit

                                             12



cityplace urban parks, dallas, texas

placemaking

accessible and connected

                                             13



sante fe plaza 
temple, texas

                                             14



SANTA FE 
PLAzA 

FIRST 
STREET

CORRIDOR

TOWN CENTER

SOUTH 
GATEWAY 
TO TMED

MLK DISTRICT 

sante fe plaza, temple, texas
                                             15



FIRST DRAFT

sante fe plaza, temple, texas
                                             16



sante fe plaza
temple, texas

24

Districts
Downtown Temple Charrette 2013

park, playground and the new Santa Fe Plaza 
and greenbelt trail. 

• Santa Fe Greenbelt trail 

The linear trail has been sectioned off into 
phased portions. The first portions begin by be-
ing incorporated into the Santa Fe Plaza master 
planning then move east. 

• Santa Fe Plaza

The city has already allocated money towards 
the plaza so it should be completed in phase I. 

Fe Depot

4. Develop Santa Fe pedestrian plaza on 
Avenue B

5. Create incentives for mixed-use develop-
ment surrounding Santa Fe Plaza 

6. Adaptive re-use of historic Ice House

Proposed Projects and Phasing

• Whistle Stop Park Expansion 

Phase three connects the existing whistle stop 

Santa Fe Plaza
District Master Plan 

The Santa Fe District uses the Depot as an 
activity anchor and catalyst point. The park will 
relate back to the depot in regards to alignment 
and use. The Depot will be used for public and 
private events with spill-over space onto the 
pedestrian street which is currently Avenue B. 
Closing off this street allows for a safer and 
more efficient public space. 

Whistle stop park is already a point of pride for 
the city but the area adjacent to the park could 
be better incorporated into the framework and 
connectivity of the city. 

Surrounding development would draw activity 
and people to the park space. 

Main Ideas

1. Expand Whistle Stop Park to create linear 
park alongside rail

2. Incorporate downtown gateway branding on 
Central

3. Creation of Santa Fe Plaza north of Santa 

lessons learned

 — understand the site and regional context
 — money allocation
 — regional infrastructure

                                             17



seaholm, austin, texas

placemaking

comfortable / favorable image

                                             18



TBG
1306 May St. 
Suite 200
Fort Worth, Texas 76104

[817] 870 9848
tbgpartners.com

Burleson, Texas - 09/14/2018

Mayor vera calvin plaza in old ToWn

The information shown is based on 
the best information available and is 

subject to change without notice.

1

SCALE:1”=100'
0 100' 200'50'25'

SCALE:1”=200'
0 400'200'100'50'

SCALE:1”=300'
0 600'300'150'75'

SCALE:1”=400'
0 800'400'200'100'

SCALE:1”=500'
0 1000'500'250'125'

SCALE:1”=600'
0 1200'600'300'150'

SCALE:1”=700'
0 1400'700'350'175'

SCALE:1”=800'
0 1600'800'400'200'

SCALE:1”=1000'
0 2000'1000'500'250'

SCALE:1”=2000'
0 4000'2000'1000'500'

SCALE:1”=3000'
0 6000'3000'1500'500'

0 120'60'30'15'
SCALE:1”=60'

0 100'50'25'10'
SCALE:1”=50'

0 80'40'20'10'
SCALE:1”=40'

0 60'30'15'5'
SCALE:1”=30'

0 40'20'10'5'
SCALE:1”=20'

0 20'10'5'1'
SCALE:1”=10'

0 160'
SCALE:1”=80'

80'40'20'

8'4'2'0 1'
SCALE:1/4”=1’-0”

4'2'1'0 6"
SCALE:1/2”=1’-0”

2'1'6"0 3"
SCALE:1”=1’-0”

0 40'20'10'5' 80'
SCALE:1/32”=1’-0”

0 32'16'8'4'
SCALE:1/16”=1’-0”

0 20'10'5'1'
SCALE:3/32”=1’-0”

0 16'8'4'2'
SCALE:1/8”=1’-0”

08 '4'1' 2'
SCALE:3/16”=1’-0”

2'1'6"0 1"
SCALE:1-1/2”=1’-0”

1'6"3"0 1"
SCALE:3”=1’-0”

4'2'1'06 "
SCALE:3/8”=1’-0”

2'6"01 '3"
SCALE:3/4”=1’-0”

dallas scales

1”=100’

1”=200’

1”=300’

1”=400’

1”=500’

1”=600’

1”=700’

1”=800’

1”=1000’

1”=2000’

1”=3000’

1”=10’

1”=20’

1”=30’

1”=40’

1”=50’

1”=60’

1”=80’

1/32”=1’

1/16”=1’

3/32”=1’

1/8”=1’

3/16”=1’

1/4”=1’

3/4”=1’

1”=1’

1-1/2”=1’

3”=1’

3/8”=1’

1/2”=1’

leGend

1.    GREAT LAWN

2.    SHADE PAVILIONS

3.    TRAIN “PLATFORM”

4.    STAGE

5.    PLAY AREA

6.  KID’S TROLLEY CAR

7.    DEPOT COURTYARD

8.    TROLLEY CAR

9.    CATENARY LIGHTS

10.  REMOVABLE 
BOLLARDS

11.  OUTDOOR SEATING 
AREAS

12.  RESTROOM BUILDING

13. WATER TOWER

13

9

2

12

11

1111

11

11

11

11

11

10

10

9 99

8
7

6

5

4
3

2

1

W elliSon STreeT (pedSTrian STreeT)

propoSed 4-STory 
MiXed USe BUildinG

S 
W

il
So

n
 S

Tr
ee

T

S 
W

a
rr

en
 S

Tr
ee

T

ciTy hall

The 
depoT

mayor vera calvin plaza  
burleson, texas

                                             19



mayor vera calvin plaza, burleson, texas
                                             20



mayor vera calvin plaza  
burleson, texas

lessons learned

 —  consider any existing soft program 
the city is already producing 

 —  think proactively about management 
and maintenance approach

 —  think proactively about the 
construction process

 —  always design with flexibility in mind

                                             21



crowdus street pop-up park, dallas, texas

placemaking

attracts people to participate  
in activities

                                             22



the shops at park lane 
dallas, texas

                                             23



shops at park lane, dallas, texas
                                             24



shops at park lane
dallas, texas

lessons learned

 —  always have thorough 
understanding of user 

 —  consult a horticulturist 
 —  lead times for materials

                                             25



lacenterra at cinco ranch central green, katy, texas

placemaking

sociable environments

                                             26



heritage park
irving, texas

                                             27



heritage park
irving, texas

lessons learned

 —  research & analysis is critical
 — design with flexibility in mind
 — historic components 
 — seamless integration of materials 

                                             28



grapevine convention  
and visitor’s bureau
grapevine, texas

                                             29



grapevine convention  
and visitor’s bureau
grapevine, texas

lessons learned

 —  understand site context and adjacencies
 — research; visit similar projects 

                                             30



grapevine main
grapevine, texas

                                             31



grapevine main
grapevine, texas

lessons learned

 —  understand the full history of the site
 — significant historical research and meetings
 — design with flexibility in mind 

                                             32



our process

                                             33



discovery evaluationinception deliverydevelopment

city of corinth park and amphitheater

our process

                                             34



our process

discovery —

research & establish  
guiding principles

social environmental economic

cultural water market

connectivity terrain funding

health vegetation cost benefit

jurisdictional climate budget

infrastructure

                                             35



summer winds

winter winds

AM

PM

potential public art

views from  
residential tower

Broadway St

Citizen’s Tower

church

new retail

our process

discovery —

site analysis

                                             36



our process

discovery —

site analysis

576.1 feet

574.7 feet

573 feet

571.5 feet

56
6.

7 
fe

et

56
3.

3 
fe

et

corinth 
municipal 
court

north central 
texas college 
bookstore

walton dr.

corinth pkwy.

s interstate 35

n 
co

ri
nt

h 
st

.

denton katy trail

Opportunity
improved connection to 
Denton and Lewisville via 
train, vehicle, and bike

Constraint
heavy noise and 
traffic from intersate

Opportunity
create a flexible urban space 
that offers placemaking, LID 
and amenity improvements

Opportunity
enhance accessibility with 
streets sidewalks and wayfinding

Constraint
overhead power

Opportunity
create systems  to improve 
environmental quality 
on and off site

Opportunity
create property value for adjacent 
parcels and the city of Corinth

Opportunity
increase public saftey with 
lighting and landscape buffers

Opportunity
improve connection via 
pedestrian pathways to 
surrounding community

Opportunity
extend programming into the 
community w/ future roads

Opportunity
proximity to TOD improves 
regional accessibility to the site

festival w
ay

N. corinth st.

m
ain st.

Constraint
future development 
impacts hydrology on site

                                             37



our process

public engagement —

information as power

 —  stakeholder meetings
 —  public engagement and open houses
 —  public input from website platform  
— 700+ respondents

 — survey monkey  

 —  airline highway park landing page 
https://www.brec.org/index.cfm/page/airline-highway-community-park-results

 —  results from survey poll 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/stories/SM-GR88MGGY/

                                             38

https://www.brec.org/index.cfm/page/airline-highway-community-park-results 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/stories/SM-GR88MGGY/


airline community park
baton rouge, lousiana

                                             39



our process

programming

lubbock
masterplan

Lubbock, Texas
10/29/2019

TBG
430 Austin street,
Suite 200
San Antonio, Texas 78215

[210] 366 9933
tbgpartners.com

The information shown is based on 
the best information available and is 
subject to change without notice.

programming
activation  

2

summer
sa

tu
rd

ay
 

su
nd

ay
 

m
on

da
y

tu
es

da
y

w
ed

ne
sd

ay
th

ur
sd

ay
 

fr
id

ay
 

fall spring winter 

Texas Tech College Events 

Civic Park Programming

Downtown Professionals 

Community Events  

Pop-Up Events  

Holiday 

Tailgating 
Student activities
Organization Fundraisers  

Trunk or Treat
Pumpkin Trail
Breakfast with Santa 
Holiday Happening
Easter 
New Years Eve
Columbus Day 
4th of July 
Earth Day
MLK Day
Cinco de Mayo  

Lunch carts 
Lunch Yoga 
Wifi 
Coffee Chat 

Moonlight Musicals: The Wizard of Oz
Alzheimer’s walk
Learn to knit 
Stretch & Strength 
Family Dog trainer 

Farmers Market 
Book sale 
Ruffle and Rust Expo
Buddy Holly Gallery 

                                             40



shops at park lane, dallas, texas

our vision = your vision

                                             41



city of corinth park and amphitheater

our vision = your vision

What currently defines Corinth?

                                             42



city of corinth park and amphitheater

our vision = your vision

What currently defines Corinth?

What is the most important aspect of the project to you?

                                             43



questions?

                                             44



thank you

2001 bryan street
suite 1450
dallas, tx 75201

tbgpartners.com

Mark Meyer
mark.meyer@tbgpartners.com
[214] 744–0757

                                             45



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: Interlocal Agreement with Denton County Concerning Participation in Tax Increment

Reinvestment Zone No. 2
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement &
Proactive Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Review an Interlocal Agreement between the City of Corinth and Denton County, concerning Denton County's
participation in Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
On September 5, 2019, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 19-09-05-32 creating the Tax Increment
Reinvestment Zone (the "TIRZ"). The purpose of the TIRZ is to assist the community with achieving its vision for
sustainable growth and prosperity --- as articulated in the Strategic Plan and the Comprehensive Plan --- by
leveraging the tax increment revenues generated within the boundaries of the zone to finance public infrastructure
and other related improvements to attract investment.

In the relative short time that the TIRZ has been in existence, only the City is contributing tax increment towards
financing public infrastructure and other related improvements needed to enable and encourage development. The
City is contributing 50 percent of its tax increment towards such projects over a period of 36 years. The City's tax
contributions, if combined with contributions from Denton County (the "County") can be significantly enhanced in
support of the community's vision for growth and development.

Towards that end, the City and the County have been working diligently to craft an Interlocal Agreement (the
"Agreement") over several months that outlines the County's participation in the TIRZ. Per the Agreement, those
properties and projects identified within the TIRZ as Area 3 (the Taylor and surrounding properties) and Area 8
(the Long Lake and surrounding properties) will not be included as projects that will receive tax increment
contributions from the County. The County expressed strong interest in partnering with the City to provide
additional financing for the development of the Long Lake and surrounding properties provided that the
development, to the reasonable satisfaction of the County Commissioners Court, will deliver an iconic project.

Other components of the Agreement include: (i) the County being able to appoint three (3) members to the TIRZ
Board of Directors and (ii) that any amendment to the TIRZ Project Plan that would increase the number of
approved projects not listed in the TIRZ Project Plan requires additional approval of the Denton County
Commissioners Court.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Agreement as presented.

                                             46



   
    CONSENT ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: October 22, 2020, Workshop Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the October 22, 2020, workshop session. 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the October 22, 2020, workshop session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the October 22, 2020, workshop session minutes.

Attachments
October 22, 2020 - Workshop Session Minutes 

                                             47



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 22nd day of October 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Workshop Session at the 
Corinth City Hall at 5:45 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place, and 
purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with the 
following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager  
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 
Chris Rodriguez, Assistant Finance Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Michelle Mixell, Planning and Development Manager 
Miguel Inclan, Planner 
Shelley McCann, Code Enforcement Officer 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshal 
Katherine Lindsey, Intern 
 
Others Present: 

Ross Martin, Wolverine Interests 
Nadia Christian, Wolverine Interests 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:45 P.M., and immediately moved to the Regular Session, Item 1, 
iSWM Presentation. Mayor Heidemann reconvened into the workshop session at 5:50 P.M. 
 

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
1. Discuss the Lake Cities Focus and receive a presentation about the Search Institute’s Developmental Assets. 
 
Katherine Lindsey, Intern, gave a presentation to the City Council on the imitative to focus on the youth of the Lake 
Cities. The Council engaged with City Manager Hart regarding his previous experience with the Search Institute’s 
program.  
 

                                             48



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             49



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             50



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             51



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             52



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             53



 
 

 
 
 
2. Hold a discussion on the creation of a Municipal Management District (“MMD”) to assist with financing 

improvements within the Transit Oriented Development (“TOD”) District. 
 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Director, gave a presentation on the Municipal Management District 
(MMD).  He explained the main benefit is for additional revenue, which will assist with funding infrastructure projects.  
 
Nadia Christian and Ross Martin from Wolverine Interests attended the meeting. Mr. Martin explained that any debt 
of the Management District is secure. It can be secured by any assessments of the district; all of those are over and 
above what the city does now and is specific to that area. Further, the concept is that that area pays in some extra for 
that development; any bonds issued by the MMD are secured solely by those revenues. If the MMD issues assessment 
bonds, the bonds are secured solely by the assessments levied on the properties within the MMD. They are non-
recourse to the city and not full faith and credit. 
  
 

 
 

                                             54



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             55



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

                                             56



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             57



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             58



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             59



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3. Receive an update and hold a discussion on Denton County’s participation in the Tax Increment Reinvestment 
Zone (TIRZ). 

City Manager Hart briefed the Council on the County’s main concerns: non-agreed upon projects, projects that benefit 
the City and the County, and land development. The committed to follow-through before Commissioner Coleman 

                                             60



 
 

leaves office. The County supports the rail stop in Corinth. He estimated the County will participate at 80% and the 
City will participate at 50%. 

4. Presentation on the Boat and Recreational Vehicle (RV) parking regulations and proposed amendment. 

George Marshall, City Engineer, presented City Council with an update on the Boat and RV Ordinance updates. The 
Council requested clarification on the proposed changes. The item will be presented again in a future meeting.  

 

 

 

 

                                             61



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             62



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             63



 
 

 
5. Receive a presentation, hold a discussion, and provide staff with direction regarding the City’s tree preservation 

ordinance. This item was not discussed. 
 

6. Discuss meeting items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed session items as set forth 
in the Closed Session agenda items below.  

Council Member Garber inquired about Item 7, regarding the Ordinance to abandon water and fire lane easements. 
City Manager Hart stated with the construction of the Lake Dallas High School, easements were moved and 
abandoned.  

 

There was no closed session during the workshop session. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council convened in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation; 
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act. 
 
a. Robert B. Palmer and Sherry L Palmer v. Derek William Kirkwood, et al, Civil Action No. 4:20-cv-688, United 

States District Court, Eastern District of Texas. 

 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open meeting 
would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person. 
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 
 
a. City Manager Evaluation 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body 
has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the 
territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development 
negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 

                                             64



 
 

 

b. Project Daylight 

 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City Council.  
City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on any agenda 
item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 

ITEMS. 

 

ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the workshop session at 6:53 P.M. 

 

AYES: 
 

Meeting adjourned. 

 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                             65



   
    CONSENT ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: October 22, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the October 22, 2020, regular session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the October 22, 2020, regular session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the October 227, 2020, regular session minutes.

Attachments
October 22, 2020 - Regular Session Minutes 

                                             66



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 22nd day of October 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Regular 
Session at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting 
date, time, place, and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 
551.041, Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 

Members Present: 
Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 

 
Staff Members Present: 
Bob Hart, City Manager  
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 
Chris Rodriguez, Assistant Finance Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Michelle Mixell, Planning and Development Manager 
Miguel Inclan, Planner 
Shelley McCann, Code Enforcement Officer 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshal 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 6:53 P.M. The Invocation was delivered by Council 
Member Garber. The Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge did not take place. 
 

PRESENTATION 

1. Receive designation as a Silver iSWM Certified Community. 

The presentation took place at the beginning of the Workshop Session. 

Sydney Ligous with the North Central Texas Council of Government presented George Marshall, City 
Engineer, with the iSWM certification plaque and sign. Corinth is one of seven cities to receive the iSWM 
designation.  

PROCLAMATION 

2. Proclamation Recognizing October as National Community Planning Month 

Mayor Heidemann presented George Marshall, City Engineer, Michelle Mixell, Planning and Development 
Manager and Miguel Inclan, Planner with the National Community Planning Month Proclamation. 
 
 

                                             67



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion. 
Should the Mayor, a Council Member, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

3. Consider and act on minutes from the September 3, 2020, workshop session. 
 

4. Consider and act on minutes from the September 3, 2020, regular session. 
 

5. Consider and act on minutes from the September 17, 2020, workshop session. 
 

6. Consider and act on minutes from the September 17, 2020, regular session. 
 

7. Consider approval of an ordinance to abandon a variety of waterline and fire lane easements 
recorded in the Plat Records for Lake Dallas, ISD High School Addition. 

MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve the Consent Agenda. Council Member Pickens 
seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

There were no citizen comments. 

 
BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
8. Consider and adopt an Ordinance authorizing the issuance and sale of City of Corinth, Texas, 

combination tax and limited surplus revenue certificates of obligation, Series 2020; levying an 
annual ad valorem tax and providing for the security and payment of said certificates; approving 
the official statement; providing an effective date; and enacting other provisions relating to the 
subject.  

 
Boyd London, Hilltop Securities Inc., reviewed the details and results of the certificates of obligation with 
the City Council.  
 
MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burke to approve the as presented. Council Member Garber seconded 
the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 

                                             68



 
 

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

9. Consider and act on an Ordinance of the City of Corinth, Texas, amending Section 71.07, Parking 
Certain Vehicles in Residential Areas, of Chapter 71, Stopping, Standing, and Parking of Title VII, 
Traffic Code, of the City’s Code of Ordinances. 

 
This item is tabled until the next City Council meeting. 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each Council Member the opportunity to provide general updates 
and/or comments to fellow Council Members, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, 
in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Council Member may direct 
that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 
 
Mrs. Henderson received a call and email from a resident requesting that the City adopt an ordinance like 
McKinney’s Ordinance Number 2020-04-31 regarding masks. 
 
Council Member Garber inquired about the fencing regulations on Shady Shores Road. 
 
 

Mayor Heidemann recessed the Regular Session at 7:10 P.M.  

and immediately convened into Closed Session. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 

a. Robert B. Palmer and Sherry L Palmer v. Derek William Kirkwood, et al, Civil Action No. 4:20-cv-

688, United States District Court, Eastern District of Texas. 

 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, 
or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 
 
a. City Manager Evaluation 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive 
to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 
 

b. Project Daylight 

                                             69



 
 

 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED 

SESSION ITEMS. 
 

Mayor Heidemann recessed Closed Session at 7:48 P.M.  

and convened into Regular Session. 

  

MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve amendments to the Chapter 380 Agreement 
between the City of Corinth, Corinth Economic Development Corporation, and Realty Capital as presented. 
Council Member Henderson seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

Mayor Heidemann recessed Regular Session at 7:49 P.M. and immediately reconvened into 

Closed Session. 

 

ADJOURN: 
 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 9:20 P.M. 

 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                             70



   
    CONSENT ITEM    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: November 12, 2020 Special Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the November 12, 2020, special session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the November 12, 2020, special session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the November 12, 2020, special session minutes.

Attachments
November 12, 2020 Special Session Minutes 

                                             71



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 12th day of November 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Regular 
Session at the Corinth City Hall at 6:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting 
date, time, place, and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 
551.041, Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 

Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

Scott Garber, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 

Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 

Staff Members Present: 
Bob Hart, City Manager  
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services & Communications Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshal 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.  
 
CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

There were no other comments. 

 

 

Mayor Heidemann requested a motion to recess the meeting due to not having the final result of the 

election from Denton County.  

 
MOTION made by Council Member Henderson to recess the meeting until Tuesday, November 17, 
2020, pending the final results. Council Member Pickens seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

 
 

                                             72



 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
1. Consider and action on a Resolution of the City Council canvassing and declaring the results of 

the General Election held on November 3, 2020, for the purpose of electing persons to serve as 
Council Members for Place 1, Place 3, and Place 4, each for a term of two (2) years; providing 
confirmation of voting tabulation; and providing an effective date.  
 

2. Consider and act on an Ordinance of the Corinth City Council canvassing and declaring the 
results of the November 3, 2020, Special Election.  
 

3. Consider and act on a Resolution of the City Council authorizing the Mayor and Members of the 
City Council to serve as the Board of Directors of the City of Corinth Fire Control, Prevention, 
And Emergency Medical Services District; appointing the Mayor and Members of City Council 
to serve on the Board; providing for appointment and terms of service; and providing an 
effective date.     

 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each Council Member the opportunity to provide general updates 
and/or comments to fellow Council Members, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, 
in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Council Member may direct 
that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 
 
Council Member Henderson updated the City Council about the Grand Opening for Doggie Wonderland, 
Epic Nails, and Bones and Burrito. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
The City Council will convene into closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

Mayor Heidemann convened into Closed Session at 6:04 P.M.  

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 

a. Flood mitigation right of entry 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer 
or employee. 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive 
to a business prospect. 

                                             73



 
 

 
a. Project Agora 

 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 

Mayor Heidemann recessed Closed Session at 6:24 P.M. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED 

SESSION ITEMS. 

 
ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 6:26 P.M. 
 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                             74



   
    CONSENT ITEM    4.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: November 17, 2020 Special Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the November 17, 2020, special session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the November 17, 2020, special session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the November 17, 2020, special session minutes.

Attachments
November 17, 2020 - Special Session Minutes 

                                             75



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 17th day of November 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Regular 
Session at the Corinth City Hall at 3:35 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting 
date, time, place, and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 
551.041, Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager  
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services & Communications Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 3:36 P.M.  
 
CITIZENS COMMENTS: 
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

There were no other comments. 

 

BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
1. Consider and action on a Resolution of the City Council canvassing and declaring the results of 

the General Election held on November 3, 2020, for the purpose of electing persons to serve as 
Council Members for Place 1, Place 3, and Place 4, each for a term of two (2) years; providing 
confirmation of voting tabulation; and providing an effective date.  

MOTION made by Council Member Henderson to approve the resolution canvassing and declaring the 
results of the General Election held on November 3, 2020, for the purpose of electing a person to serve as 
City Council Members for Place 1, Place 3, and Place 4, each for a term of two years. Council Member 
Pickens seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

                                             76



 
 

 
2. Formal swearing in of Council Members. 

 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary, performed the Oath of Office and Statement of Appointed Officer 
with Steve Holzwarth, Place 3, and Tina Henderson, Place 4. Mayor Pro Tem Burke attended via video 
conference and will be sworn in at a future date. 
 

3. Consider and act on an Ordinance of the Corinth City Council canvassing and declaring the 
results of the November 3, 2020, Special Election.  

MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve the ordinance of the City Council canvassing and 
declaring the results of the November 3, 2020, Special Election. Member Henderson seconded the 
motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

4. Consider and act on a Resolution of the City Council authorizing the Mayor and Members of the 
City Council to serve as the Board of Directors of the City of Corinth Fire Control, Prevention, 
And Emergency Medical Services District; appointing the Mayor and Members of City Council 
to serve on the Board; providing for appointment and terms of service; and providing an 
effective date.     

MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve the resolution of the City Council appointing the 
City Council as the permanent board of directors of the Corinth Fire Control, Prevention, and Emergency 
Medical Services District, pursuant to Chapter 344 of the Texas Local Government Code. Member 
Pickens seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 3:52 P.M. 

 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                             77



   
    CONSENT ITEM    5.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: November 19, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the November 19, 2020, workshop session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the November 19, 2020, workshop session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the November 19, 2020, workshop session minutes.
 

Attachments
November 19, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes 

                                             78



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 19th day of November 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Workshop Session at 
the Corinth City Hall at 5:45 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place , 
and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with 
the following members to wit: 
 
Council Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Steve Holzwarth, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 

Council Members Absent: 

Tina Henderson, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 
Bob Hart, City Manager  
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Communications & Strategic Services Director 
Chris Rodriguez, Assistant Finance Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning & Development Director 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Michelle Mixell, Planning and Development Manager 
Miguel Inclan, Planner 
Brett Cast, Engineering Coordinator 
Melissa Dolan, Interim Public Works Director 
Brenton Copeland, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshal 
 
Others Present: 

Ross Martin, Wolverine Interests 
Nadia Christian, Wolverine Interests 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:46 P.M. 
 
WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
1. Receive a presentation from Wolverine Interests and hold a discussion on the creation of a Municipal Management 

District (“MMD”) to enable and encourage development on catalyst properties within the Transit Oriented 
Development (“TOD”) District. 

 
Ross Martin with Wolverine Interests presented the concept of a Municipal Management District (“MMD”) to the City 
Council. He stated that a parking structure can be built anywhere. He said he would see the project financed, possibly 
through a tax levy. Martin confirmed bonds are secured by revenues that are levied or assessed by so bonds of the 
district. You know, if the district levies and have valorem tax or letting some assessment though secure the bond it's 
probably also important to note that those can only be levied within the boundaries of the district. This wouldn't be a 
city wide or available to assess somebody outside the district totally within the district.  

                                             79



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

                                             80



 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             81



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

                                             82



 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             83



 
 

 
 
 
2. Annual Report from the Planning and Zoning Commission Chair, Brian Rush.  
 
Chair Rush shared the Planning and Zoning Commission’s annual year in review. The Council did not have any 
questions for Mr. Rush. Mayor Heidemann thanked the Planning & Zoning Commission for their valuable service to 
the residents of Corinth and the City.  

3. Presentation on the Boat and Recreational Vehicle (RV) parking regulations and proposed amendment.   

Item 3 was not discussed during the work session. 

 
4. Receive a presentation, hold a discussion, and provide staff with direction regarding the City’s tree preservation 

ordinance. 

Michelle Mixell, Planning & Development Manager, discussed the City’s current tree preservation ordinance; she 
provided a summary of the Planning Department’s benchmark analysis and share a list of concerns with the current 
regulations. She will further update and seek consideration of Council in a future meeting.  

5. Receive an update and hold a discussion on the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (“TIRZ”). 

Bob Hart, City Manager discussed the meeting with Judge Andy Eads and Michael Talley regarding the County’s 
participation with the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone. He gave a general outline of the project list and stated the 
focus relates to the project list. If the project is not on the list, Corinth would need the permission of the City Council 
and the Commissioner’s Court. 

6. Discuss meeting items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed session items as set forth 
in the Closed Session agenda items below.  
 

There was no discussion of items on the Regular Session Agenda.  
There was no closed session during the workshop session. 

                                             84



 
 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council convened in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation; 
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act. 
 
a. Consider acquisition 

 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open meeting 
would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person. 
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.  
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body 
has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the 
territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development 
negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 

 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City Council.  
City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on any agenda 
item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 
ITEMS. 

 

ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the workshop session at 6:54 P.M. 

 

AYES: 

 
Meeting adjourned. 

 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                             85



   
    CONSENT ITEM    6.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: November 19, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the November 19, 2020, regular session. 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the November 19, 2020, regular session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the November 19, 2020, regular session minutes.

Attachments
November 19, 2020 Regular Session Minutes 

                                             86



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 19th day of November 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Regular 
Session at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting 
date, time, place, and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 
551.041, Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Council Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Steve Holzwarth, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 

Council Members Absent: 

Tina Henderson, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 
Bob Hart, City Manager  
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Communications & Strategic Services Director 
Chris Rodriguez, Assistant Finance Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning & Development Director 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Michelle Mixell, Planning and Development Manager 
Miguel Inclan, Planner 
Brett Cast, Engineering Coordinator 
Melissa Dolan, Interim Public Works Director 
Brenton Copeland, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshal 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 6:54 P.M. The Invocation was delivered by Council 
Member Garber, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge. 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion. 
Should the Mayor, a Council Member, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

1. Consider and act on minutes from the October 1, 2020, workshop session. 
 

2. Consider and act on minutes from the October 1, 2020, regular session. 
 

3. Consider and act on minutes from the September 24, 2020, special session. 
 

4. Consider approval of an ordinance to abandon a variety of waterline and fire lane easements 
recorded in the Plat Records for Lake Dallas, ISD High School Addition. 

                                             87



 
 

Council Member Garber – Move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Council Member Pickens 
seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Holzwarth, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

There were no citizen comments. 
 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
5. Consider adoption of a resolution directing publication of notice of intention to issue certificates of 

obligation to provide funds for street improvements, municipal drainage improvements, and water 
and sewer improvements; and resolving other matters relating to the subject. 

 
Council Member Garber - Move to approve Resolution 20-11-19-24 directing publication of notice of 
intention to issue certificates of obligation to provide funds for street improvements, municipal drainage 
improvements, and water and sewer improvements and related matters. 
Mayor Pro Tem Burke seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Holzwarth, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

6. Consider and act on an Ordinance of the City of Corinth, Texas, amending Section 71.07, Parking 
Certain Vehicles in Residential Areas, of Chapter 71, Stopping, Standing, and Parking of Title VII, 
Traffic Code, of the City’s Code of Ordinances. 

 
George Marshall, City Engineer, overviewed the requested updates from the October 22, 2020, City Council 
Meeting. 
 
Council Member Garber - Move to approve Ordinance No. 20-11-19-36 amending certain parking 
regulations in Chapter 71, Title 7 of the Code of Ordinances as presented. Council Member Pickens 
seconded the motion. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Holzwarth, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 

                                             88



 
 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

7. Consider and act on the placement of members for the Board of Adjustments, Board of 
Construction Appeals, and the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

Council Member Garber - Move to approve the following Board and Commission Appointments: 
 
 Board of Adjustment and the Board of Construction Appeals  
  Appoint David Payne from Place 7, 1st Alternate to Place 3 and  

 Jennifer Olive, from Place 6, 2nd Alternate to Place 7, 1st Alternate 
 
 Planning and Zoning Commission 

Appoint Jennifer Olive from 1st Alternate to Place 1 Commissioner and  
  William Roussell III from 2nd Alternate to 1st Alternate 
 
Council Member Pickens seconded the motion. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Holzwarth, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each Council Member the opportunity to provide general updates 
and/or comments to fellow Council Members, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, 
in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Council Member may direct 
that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 
 
Mayor Heidemann encouraged the use of masks. He requested a final report of the Keep Corinth Beautiful 
event from Lana Wylie, KCB Staff Liaison. Wylie stated the results, 238 participants, not knowing if people 
were counted twice. 71% were from Corinth, 18% from Shady Shores, 6% from Hickory Creek, 5% from 
Lake Dallas. The Lake Dallas Animal Shelter received $441 in donations and a tremendous amount of dog 
and cat food, and supplies. Mayor Heidemann expressed his gratitude for the KCB Board’s efforts in 
bringing the community together. 
 

There was no closed session discussed during the regular session. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 

a. Consider acquisition 

 

                                             89



 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, 
or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive 
to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 

 

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED 

SESSION ITEMS. 

 
ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 7:16 P.M. 

 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                             90



   
    CONSENT ITEM    7.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: December 3, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the December 3, 2020, workshop session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the December 3, 2020, workshop session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the December 3, 2020, workshop session minutes.

Attachments
November 3, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes 

                                             91



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 3rd day of December 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Workshop Session at the 
Corinth City Hall at 5:45 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place, and 
purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with the 
following members to wit: 
 
Council Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Steve Holzwarth, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Council Members Absent: 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
Staff Members Present: 
Bob Hart, City Manager  
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Michael Ross, Fire Chief 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning & Development Director 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Melissa Dolan, Interim Public Works Director 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshal 
Katherine Lindsey, Intern 
 
Others Present: 
Jason Tanko, Tanko Lighting 
Nick Fiore, Tanko Lighting 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:45 P.M. 
 

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 
 
1. Interview for Place – 2nd Alternate for the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
The Council interviewed Wade May for consideration to reappointment to the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
2. Provide an update and discuss the Tanko Lighting review project.  
 
Jason and Nick Fiore gave a presentation and updated the Council on the status of the street light study. Corinth has 
34 distribution lights, 198 stand-alone, and 634 decorative lights. He responded to questions regarding the pole and 
lights and Oncor’s responsibility. City Manager Hart stated Oncor is performing a reconciliation of the lights.  He 
clarified the City would own the lights and purchase the power. The City would also be responsible for the pole. Fiore 
clarified the cost with being a five to six-year turnaround on investment for the City. He indicated the savings would 

                                             92



 
 

be approximately $8 per month. There will be a negotiation process as Fiore believes Oncor will not be interested in 
selling the streetlights. City Attorney Patricia Adams is reviewing the existing Ordinance. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             93



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             94



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                             95



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. Discuss meeting items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed session items as set forth 

                                             96



 
 

in the Closed Session agenda items below.  
 
 

There was no discussion on Regular Agenda Items. 

There was no closed session during the workshop session. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council convened in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation; 
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act. 
 

a. Flood mitigation right of entry - ±38.825 acres located at 2455 Silver Meadow Lane, Corinth, Texas 

76208. 

 

b. Police procedures and potential claim. 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open meeting 
would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person. 
 

a. Being 10.49 acres of land located in the J. WALTON SURVEY, Abstract No. 1389, City of 

Corinth, Denton County, Texas, and being a portion of the tract of land conveyed to Anchor City 

Investments, LLC, by the deed recorded in Instrument No. 2006-90896, of the Deed Records of 

Denton County, Texas (WI). 
 
b. Being 1.24 acres of land out of the J. P. Walton Survey, Abstract 1389, City of Corinth, Denton 

County, Texas (TOD West 1). 
 

c.  Being 1.548 acres, Tract 10 (PT), Old DCAD TR 2B, 2D, out of the J. P. Walton Survey, Abstract 

1389, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (TOD West 2). 
 

d. 2003 Corinth Parkway (RC). 
 

e. 1200 North Corinth Street (C). 
 
f.  Being approximately 13 acres of land, more or less, in the North Central Texas College Addition 

No. 2, Block A, Lot 1R (N). 
 

g. Being approximately 7 acres of land, more or less, located in the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract No. 

1389, City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (H). 
 

h. Right-of-way consisting of .252 acres located at 2304 Quail Run Drive along Dobbs Road within 

the E. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 511, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. 

 
i. Right-of-way consisting of 1.56 acres located at 6881 South I-35E and along Dobbs Road within the 

H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (M/B) 

 
j. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs 

                                             97



 
 

Road within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, 

Texas. (F) 
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.  
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body 
has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the 
territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development 
negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 

 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City Council.  
City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on any agenda 
item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 

ITEMS. 

 

ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the workshop session at 6:20 P.M. 
 

AYES: 

 

Meeting adjourned. 

 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
 
       
Lana Wylie, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                             98



   
    CONSENT ITEM    8.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: December 3, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the December 3, 2020, regular session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the December 3, 2020,regular session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the December 3, 2020, regular session minutes.

Attachments
December 3, 2020, Regular Session Minutes 

                                             99



 
 

 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 
CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 3rd day of December 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Regular 
Session at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting 
date, time, place, and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 
551.041, Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Council Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Steve Holzwarth, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Council Member Absent: 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager  
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Michael Ross, Fire Chief 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning & Development Director 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Melissa Dolan, Interim Public Works Director 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshal 
Katherine Lindsey, Intern 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 6:21 P.M. The Invocation was delivered by Council 
Member Garber, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge. 
 
PROCLAMATION 

1. A Proclamation recognizing the Lake Cities FD career of Captain Troy Hammons. 

Mayor Heidemann presented Shane Smith, Interim Fire Captain, with the Proclamation honoring the career 
of Captain Hammons. 

Fire Chief Ross thanked the Mayor and City Council for the Proclamation. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion. 
Should the Mayor, a Council Member, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

                                             100



 
 

 
 

2. Consider and act on Resolution 20-12-03-25 approving a compensation plan for employees. 
adopting pay schedules for General Government, Police, and Fire employees; and providing for 
an effective date.  

 
3. Consider and act on approval of calendar year 2021 Co-Sponsorship agreement between the City 

of Corinth and the Lake Cities Girls Softball Association for youth softball, adult softball and 
youth baseball.  

 
4. Consider and act on approval of calendar year 2021 Co-Sponsorship agreement between the City 

of Corinth and the Lake Cities Soccer Association for youth soccer.  
 

5. Consider and act on an Interlocal Agreement for the Lake Cities Fire Department to provide fire 
protection to the unincorporated parts of Denton County that are within the boundaries of the 
LCFD response area.   
 

6. Consider and act on an Interlocal Agreement for the Lake Cities Fire Department to 
provide Ambulance Services to the unincorporated parts of Denton County that are within the 
boundaries of the LCFD response area.   
 

7. Consider and act on Resolution 20-12-03-26 suspending the January 23, 2021, effective date 
of CoServ Gas, LTD.'s requested increase to permit the city time to study the request and to 
establish reasonable rates; Approving cooperation with other cities in the Coserv Gas, Ltd. 
service area; Hiring legal and consulting services to negotiate with the company and direct any 
necessary litigation and appeals; authorizing intervention in Docket OS-20-00005136 at the 
Railroad Commission; Requiring reimbursement of cities' rate case expenses; Finding that the 
meeting at which this resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law; Requiring 
notice of this resolution to the company and legal counsel.  
 

8. Consider entering into a drainage maintenance agreement with the Crosspointe Subdivision 
Homeowners Association for the operation and maintenance of the detention basin located 
upstream from their development.   

Council Member Henderson – Move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Council Member Garber 
seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

There were no citizen comments. 
 

                                             101



 
 

 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
9. Consider and appoint a Chair and Vice Chair for the Planning and Zoning Commission for Fiscal 

Year 2020-2021 per the procedures of the City Charter. 
 
Council Member Garber - Move to appoint Brian Rush to serve as Chair and Lindsey Baker to serve as 
Vice Chair of the Planning and Zoning Commission for the 2020-2021 fiscal year. Council Member 
Pickens seconded the motion. 
 
AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

10. Consider and act on the placement of the 2nd Alternate for the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
Council Member Garber - Move to appoint Wade May to serve as the 2nd Alternate for the Planning and 
Zoning Commission for the remainder of an unexpired term ending on September 30, 2021. Council 
Member Henderson seconded the motion. 
 
AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

11. Consider and act on Resolution 20-12-03-27 supporting the Lake Cities Focus.  
 
Council Member Henderson - Move to approve Resolution No. 20-12-03-27 supporting the Lake Cities 
Focus. Council Member Garber seconded the motion. 
 
AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each Council Member the opportunity to provide general updates 
and/or comments to fellow Council Members, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, 
in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Council Member may direct 
that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 
 
City Manager Hart notified the Council of the Lake Sharon Road extension opening on Wednesday, 
September 16th at 4:00 P.M., and then a reception at Oakmont Country Club. He also updated the Council 
on the Broadband study by Connected Nation with the Lake Cities Managers and informed them of the 
meetings over the next three months. 
  
Mayor Heidemann stated that the North Central Texas Council of Government’s primary focus is on 

                                             102



 
 

 
 

Broadband and commended the staff for their proactive effort. 
 

Mayor Heidemann recessed the Regular Session at 6:39 P.M.  

and convened into Closed Session at 6:40 P.M.  

 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
a. Flood mitigation right of entry - ±38.825 acres located at 2455 Silver Meadow Lane, Corinth, 

Texas 76208. 

 

b. Police procedures and potential claim. 

 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 
a. Being 10.49 acres of land located in the J. WALTON SURVEY, Abstract No. 1389, City of 

Corinth, Denton County, Texas, and being a portion of the tract of land conveyed to Anchor 

City Investments, LLC, by the deed recorded in Instrument No. 2006-90896, of the Deed 
Records of Denton County, Texas (WI). 

 

b. Being 1.24 acres of land out of the J. P. Walton Survey, Abstract 1389, City of Corinth, Denton 

County, Texas (TOD West 1). 

 

c. Being 1.548 acres, Tract 10 (PT), Old DCAD TR 2B, 2D, out of the J. P. Walton Survey, 

Abstract 1389, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (TOD West 2). 

 
d. 2003 Corinth Parkway (RC). 

 

e. 1200 North Corinth Street (C). 

 

f. Being approximately 13 acres of land, more or less, in the North Central Texas College 

Addition No. 2, Block A, Lot 1R (N). 

 
g. Being approximately 7 acres of land, more or less, located in the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract 

No. 1389, City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (H). 

 

h. Right-of-way consisting of .252 acres located at 2304 Quail Run Drive along Dobbs Road 

within the E. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 511, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, 

Texas. 

 

i. Right-of-way consisting of 1.56 acres located at 6881 South I-35E and along Dobbs Road 
within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, 

Texas. (M/B) 

 

j. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along 

                                             103



 
 

 
 

Dobbs Road within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, 

Denton County, Texas. (F) 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, 
or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive 
to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 

 

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 

Mayor Heidemann recessed Closed Session at 7:49 P.M. 

 and reconvened back into regular session at 7:51 P.M. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED 

SESSION ITEMS. 
 

Council Member Garber - Move to authorize the City Attorney to proceed with legal action necessary to 

obtain right of entry on the approximate 38.825 acres of land located at 2455 Silver Meadow Lane, 

Corinth, Texas, including without limitation action to file a petition requesting a temporary restraining 

order and temporary and permanent injunction. Council Member Henderson seconded the motion. 

AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

Council Member Garber - Move to authorize the conveyance of up to an approximate 10.49 acres of land 

located in the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract No. 1389, City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas from the 

City of Corinth to the Corinth Economic Development Corporation to be used by the EDC for economic 

development purposes in accordance with state law, providing that funds received by the EDC by third 

parties purchasing or leasing the land will be reimbursed to the City, and subject to Council approval or 

ratification, to authorize the City Manager to execute appropriate contractual documents for the 

conveyance. Council Member Pickens seconded the motion. 

AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

                                             104



 
 

 
 

Council Member Henderson - Move to authorize the conveyance of  an approximate 1.24 acres of land 

located in the J. P. Walton Survey, Abstract No. 1389, City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas from the 

City of Corinth to the Corinth Economic Development Corporation to be used by the EDC for economic 

development purposes in accordance with state law, providing that funds received by the EDC by third 

parties purchasing or leasing the land will be reimbursed to the City, and subject to Council approval or 

ratification, to authorize the City Manager to execute appropriate contractual documents for the 

conveyance. Council Member Pickens seconded the motion. 

AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

Council Member Garber - Move to authorize the conveyance of  an approximate 1.548  acres of land, 

Tract 10 (PT), Old DCAD TR 2B, 2D, out of the located in the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract No. 1389, 

City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas from the City of Corinth to the Corinth Economic Development 

Corporation to be used by the EDC for economic development purposes in accordance with state law, 

providing that funds received by the EDC by third parties purchasing or leasing the land will be 

reimbursed to the City, and subject to City Council approval or ratification, to authorize the City Manager 

to execute appropriate contractual documents for the conveyance. Council Member Pickens seconded the 

motion. 

AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

Council Member Pickens - Move to authorize the conveyance of the property located at 2003 Corinth 

Parkway, Corinth, Denton County, Texas from the City of Corinth to the Corinth Economic Development 

Corporation to be used by the EDC for economic development purposes in accordance with state law, 

providing that funds received by the EDC by third parties purchasing or leasing the land will be 

reimbursed to the City, and subject to City Council approval or ratification, to authorize the City Manager 

to execute appropriate contractual documents for the conveyance. Council Member Garber seconded the 

motion. 

AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

Council Member Henderson - Move to authorize the conveyance of the property located at 1200 North 

Corinth Street, Corinth, Denton County, Texas from the City of Corinth to the Corinth Economic 

Development Corporation to be used by the EDC for economic development purposes in accordance with 

state law, providing that funds received by the EDC by third parties purchasing or leasing the land will be 

reimbursed to the City, and subject to City Council approval or ratification, to authorize the City Manager 

                                             105



 
 

 
 

to execute appropriate contractual documents for the conveyance. Council Member Garber seconded the 

motion. 

AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
  

Council Member Garber - Move to authorize the purchase of  right of way consisting of .252 acres 

located at 2304 Quail Run Drive along Dobbs Road within the E. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 511, 

within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, for an amount not to exceed $80,150, and to authorize 

the City Manager to execute appropriate contractual documents for the acquisition. Council Member 

Henderson seconded the motion. 

AYES:  Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Burke 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

ADJOURN: 
 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 8:02 P.M. 

 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                             106



   
    CONSENT ITEM    9.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: Dark Fiber Lease to Public Works/Fire Station 2
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager
Finance Review: Yes Legal Review: N/A
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government
Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on an agreement between the City of Corinth and Zayo Group, LLC. to provide a leased dark fiber
connection between City Hall and the Public Works facility.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The City of Corinth currently has a Charter Spectrum MetroEthernet connection linking buildings for network.
These links are generally capped at 50 Mbps, which creates a significant bottleneck in the transfer a data and
generally prevents a true disaster recovery plan, where servers can be migrated between physical buildings in the
event of a disaster. Increasing the bandwidth from Charter Spectrum significantly increases the recurring costs
associated with this link.

To solve the issue of bandwidth, the City is proposing to lease dark fiber from Zayo Group, LLC. Additionally,
owning or leasing this "dark fiber" (a fiber optic connection where traffic does not pass through any shared,
non-City-owned equipment) allows the City to better ensure the security of the data being transferred.

Staff worked with Zayo to develop out a leg of the City's fiber optic network that would run from City Hall (along
the DCTA rail line) to the Public Works facility. After completion, the City would then lay its own fiber across the
shared property line between the Public Works facility and Fire Station 2, bringing both buildings into the fiber
optic network and leaving only Fire Station 1 in Lake Dallas utilizing the Charter Spectrum link as its sole
connection to the City network.

In FY2018-19, the City Council approved a Master Service Agreement (attachment: CORINTH ZAYO MSA) and
a Service Order to establish a similar dark fiber lease between City Hall and the Public Safety Complex with Zayo
Group, LLC. If approved, this proposed Service Order (attachment: ZAYO SERVICE ORDER) would apply under
the same MSA agreed to in 2019.

The proposed work was bid out under the US General Services Administration contract vehicle, Schedule 70,
Contract #: GS35F070CA, thus no further bids were necessary.

In September 2020, the City Council approved the FY2020-21 budget, which included capital outlay costs for the
installation and maintenance of this fiber optic connection. The proposed installation would be $100,000 and the
monthly recurring maintenance fee would be $1,240. The initial term of the lease will be 10 years, after which, the
City can renegotiate the ongoing maintenance costs of this link.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approving the Service Order with Zayo Group, LLC. to provide leased dark fiber between City

                                             107



Staff recommends approving the Service Order with Zayo Group, LLC. to provide leased dark fiber between City
Hall and the Public Works facility.

Attachments
CORINTH ZAYO MSA 
ZAYO SERVICE ORDER 

                                             108



DocuSign Envelope ID: 83ADC47D-4AED-4C3B-812E-1FB3F01FC1F1

                                             109



DocuSign Envelope ID: 83ADC47D-4AED-4C3B-812E-1FB3F01FC1F1

                                             110



DocuSign Envelope ID: 83ADC47D-4AED-4C3B-812E-1FB3F01FC1F1

                                             111



DocuSign Envelope ID: 83ADC47D-4AED-4C3B-812E-1FB3F01FC1F1

                                             112



DocuSign Envelope ID: 83ADC47D-4AED-4C3B-812E-1FB3F01FC1F1

                                             113



DocuSign Envelope ID: 83ADC47D-4AED-4C3B-812E-1FB3F01FC1F1

SVP Fiber Solutions Mountain Region

Dennis Kyle

                                             114



Page 1 of 2

Order Form

Order Information  

City of Corinth City of Corinth

Shea Rodgers (940) 498-3250 shea.rodgers@cityofcorinth.com

Jack Lansford jack.lansford@zayo.com

New Order - 1779466  

Order Details

Order Details

Order ID 1779466

Order Type New

Order Term 120 months

Estimated Delivery
Date

120 Business days from
execution

Product Dark Fiber

Product Details

Product Category Point to Point

Number of Fibers 4

DF Estimated Route Miles 0.91

       

Order Component(s)

Record Type ID Address Address Bandwidth Space Code Lateral A Lateral A Lateral Z Lateral Z Details

Dark Fiber 1200 N Corinth St/ Denton, TX 3300 Corinth Pkwy/Fl-1/Rm-MPOE Denton, TX

Pricing

Product Service Item Desc Component Component Address Type Status Quantity Amount Items Total

Dark Fiber Dark Fiber - MRC SOC-0004283349 1200 N Corinth St/ Denton TX MRC Pending Install 1 USD 1,240.00 USD 1,240.00

Dark Fiber Installation Fee SOC-0004283349 1200 N Corinth St/ Denton TX NRC Pending Install 1 USD 100,000.00 USD 100,000.00

Monthly Recurring Charges Total: USD 1,240.00

Non Recurring Charges Total: USD 100,000.00

Contract Details

Details

Governing MSA City of Corinth Master Service Agreement 2019-01-22

Order Notes

Pricing on this Order Form expires if Order is not signed prior to December 20, 2020

Contracting Entity Billing Account Account
Number

Contact Phone Email

Representative Phone Email

Expiration Date

                                             115



Page 2 of 2

Order ID(s): 1779466  

Grand Total Costs

Service Item Desc Items Total

Monthly Recurring Charges Total: USD 1,240.00

Non Recurring Charges Total: USD 100,000.00

Taxes and impositions As Invoiced²

Signatures

Zayo Group LLC City of Corinth

Signature:\s2\ Signature:\s1\

Printed Name:\n2\ Printed Name:\n1\

Date:\d2\ Date:\d1\

Title:\t2\ Title:\t1\

Terms and Conditions

1. Customer acknowledges that Customer is ordering the access and service(s) described above (“Dark Fiber Offerings” or "Offerings") from Zayo Group, LLC, and or its
applicable affiliate or subsidiary (“Zayo”). This Customer Order shall be governed by and subject to the applicable contract documents between Customer and Zayo referenced
above (collectively, the “Agreement”). If Customer has not executed an Agreement and/or no Agreement is referenced in this Customer Order, then this Customer Order shall
be governed by the terms and conditions of Zayo’s Master Customer Agreement and applicable Customer Schedule in effect as of the date of this Customer Order,
incorporated herein by this reference and available upon request. This Customer Order is subject to availability and shall only become binding upon acceptance by an
authorized Zayo representative. Customer acknowledges that upon Zayo’s acceptance, this Customer Order shall become a non-cancellable, binding obligation for the
purchase of the Offering for the Offering Term stated above. By signing this Customer Order, Customer further acknowledges that it has read and understands the terms and
conditions of this Customer Order and Customer’s signatory represents that he/she is authorized to sign this Customer Order on Customer’s behalf. 

2. All charges for the Offering in this Customer Order are exclusive of any taxes and other fees and surcharges (as defined below). Except for taxes based on Zayo’s net
income, Customer shall be responsible for payment of all applicable taxes that arise in any jurisdiction, including, without limitation, value added, consumption, sales, use, gross
receipts, excise, access, and bypass (“Taxes”). Customer shall also be responsible for any property tax surcharges, additional government fees (including without limitation
Federal and State regulatory fees), franchise fees, rights of way fees or charges, license or permit fees, and any other duties, fees, charges or surcharges imposed on incident
to, or based upon the provision, sale, or use of the Offerings.(“Other Fees and Surcharges”) If applicable to the Offerings being purchased by Customer, such Other Fees and
Surcharges will be listed on Customer’s Invoice. If Customer is entitled to an exemption from any of the Taxes or Other Fees and Surcharges, Customer is responsible for
presenting Zayo with a valid exemption certificate (in a form reasonably acceptable to Zayo). Zayo will give effect to any valid exemption certificate provided in accordance with
the foregoing sentence to the extent it applies to any Offering billed by Zayo to Customer following Zayo’s receipt of such exemption certificate. Customer shall indemnify,
defend and hold Zayo harmless from payment and reporting of all such Taxes and Other Fees and Surcharges, including costs, expenses, and penalties incurred by Zayo in
settling, defending or appealing any claims or actions brought against Zayo related to, or arising from, the non-payment of such Taxes and/or Other Fees and Surcharges. 

3. Unless otherwise stated elsewhere in the Agreement, the Lease Charge shall be adjusted annually effective December 31st of each year by the greater of (i) four percent
(4%) or (ii) the cumulative increase in the U.S. Consumer Price Index, All Urban Consumers (CPI-U), U.S. City Average, published by United States Department of Labor,
Bureau of Labor Statistics (“CPI Adjustment”) for the preceding 12 month period. Unless specifically excluded in the Agreement, Customer shall reimburse Zayo for its
proportionate share of the costs related to any required relocation and for its proportionate share of any non-routine maintenance. 

4. In support of Zayo meeting the Estimated Delivery Date, Customer specifically acknowledges that Customer is responsible for all work and costs on the premise side of each
Zayo Demarcation Point, including cross- connections. In addition, Customer shall be responsible for securing all rights and paying the related costs to connect to the Zayo
Demarcation Point, for securing all rights and paying the related costs to access, occupy, and conduct typical telecommunication operations within each respective building
(including any necessary rights for Zayo to enter and access each building), and for providing all necessary cable pathways in and to the respective building (all of the preceding
may include, but not be limited to, construction permits and underlying rights, building access and/or occupancy agreements, building access and/or occupancy fees,
lateral/conduit fees, riser fees, cross-connects and cross-connect fees, coordination at any third party owned location, and, where applicable, necessary space for Zayo’s fiber
termination panel). All of the above, collectively, shall be referred to as “Customer Requirements” and Customer shall reimburse Zayo in the event that a third party bills Zayo for
charges related to such Customer Requirements. If Customer satisfies a Customer Requirement by purchasing an Offering from Zayo, Zayo may pass through and Customer
shall pay Zayo for any increase in the charges to Zayo by a third party which Zayo utilizes to provide Customer the Customer Requirement. Customer acknowledges that any
delay in Customer providing such Customer Requirements may delay Zayo from completing work at any location. In the event that Customer has not provided the Customer
Requirements in time to allow Zayo to complete work (including Fiber Acceptance Testing) at any location on or before the Estimated Delivery Date, then Zayo may continue
with the acceptance procedures to the extent possible and deem the fiber delivered and accepted. 

5. If Customer is discontinuing Offering (s) of any type for any reason, Customer must submit the disconnection request through the form located at
https://www.zayo.com/disconnectservice/.

Proprietary and Confidential

                                             116



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    10.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: Solid Waste Rate 
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Chris Rodriguez, Financial Services Manager
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on an ordinance approving a rate increase for the collection of Solid Waste in the master fee
schedule and providing an effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
On October 3, 2019 the City Council approved a five year contract with an option for three one-year renewals with
Community Waste Disposal  for solid waste collections.  The contract included provisions that on January 1, 2021
or on January 1 of any year thereafter, Community Waste Disposal could request an annual market adjustment. 
The rate request shall be based upon the Annual Rate Adjustment Model set forth in Section H of the approved
contract.  Any proposed rate adjustment must be submitted and approved by the City Council.

On November 17, 2020, Community Waste Disposal submitted a request for a 0.8% market adjustment effective
January 1, 2021.  The table below reflects a sample of the adjustment for Corinth's customer base, which equates to
a $0.10 increase for residential and $0.08 for Senior Residential.  A comprehensive list of solid waste collection
rates is included in the ordinance attached.
  
Rate Description Base

Rate
Franchise

Fee
Total
Rate

Residential Rate - Current $11.25         $.84 $12.09
Residential Rate - Proposed $11.34         $.85 $12.19
       
Senior Residential Rate - Current $10.09         $.76 $10.85
Senior Residential Rate - Proposed $10.17         $.76 $10.93

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval.

Attachments
CWD Ordinance 

                                             117



 

Ordinance No.  

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-12-17- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CORINTH AMENDING SECTION 52.07 
OF THE CORINTH CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO CHARGES 
FOR CERTAIN REFUSE AND RECYCLING SERVICES; PROVIDING 

THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE CUMULATIVE OF ALL 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Corinth is a home rule city acting under its charter adopted 
by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 9 of the 

Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Corinth deems it necessary to amend Section 
52.07 of the Corinth Code of Ordinances to amend the rates for collection and disposition of 

certain garbage and refuse within the City; NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. 

That subsection (A) of Section 52.07 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Corinth, Texas is hereby amended to read as follows: 

“§ 52.07 GARBAGE COLLECTION FEES. 

(A) Fees for the collection of garbage and recycling from a residential unit are as follows: 

 

Collection 

Fee 

Weekly pickup/recycling/on demand household 
hazardous waste pickup. 

$12.19 

Weekly pickup/recycling (Senior Citizens - 65 years) $10.93 

 
SECTION 2. 

That subsections (D)(3) and (D)(5) of Section 52.07 of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Corinth, Texas are hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

                                             118



 

Ordinance No.  

Page 2 of 3 

“§ 52.07 GARBAGE COLLECTION FEES. 

D(3) Front load container rates: 

A fee of $6.93 per pickup will be charged for gates, locks and casters: 

Size/Pickup 1xWeek 2xWeek 3xWeek 4xWeek 5xWeek 6xWeek Extra 

2 Cu Yd 64.81 125.03 171.00 207.01 260.26 344.61 46.38 

3 Cu Yd 73.33 141.13 191.19 230.41 300.39 382.37 48.19 

4 Cu Yd 105.80 206.20 286.31 370.44 450.91 538.00 50.03 

6 Cu Yd 135.33 223.52 316.06 416.88 496.23 614.84 53.69 

8 Cu Yd 154.83 284.36 396.94 519.05 643.93 768.53 56.04 

 

  D ( 5 ) .    Compactors:  

 

6 Cubic Yard Per Haul (Including Disposal) 86.24 

8 Cubic Yard Per Haul (Including Disposal) 107.61 

30 Cubic Yard Per Haul (Including Disposal) 453.92 
35 Cubic Yard Per Haul (Including Disposal) 453.92 

42 Cubic Yard Per Haul (Including Disposal) 453.92 
 

* These rates include disposal fees for a haul of four tons. There is an additional fee of 
$58.06 per ton for loads exceeding four tons. Loads that exceed 54,000 lbs. will be 

charged an additional $145.17 for each ton in excess of 54,000 pounds.” 

SECTION 3. 
CUMULATIVE CLAUSE 

This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of ordinances of the City of 
Corinth, Texas, relating to garbage except where the provisions of this ordinance are in 

direct conflict with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the conflicting 
provisions of such ordinances are hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 4. 

SAVINGS CLAUSE 

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, 
clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance are severable, and if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance shall be declared 

unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such unconstitutionali ty shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses , 

sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been 
enacted by the City Council without the inclusion in this ordinance of any such 
unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence paragraph or section. 

                                             119



 

Ordinance No.  

Page 3 of 3 

SECTION 5. 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

This ordinance shall become effective January 1, 2021 

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 17th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2020. 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Patricia A. Adams, City Attorney 

                                             120



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    11.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: Interlocal Agreement with Denton County Concerning Participation in Tax Increment

Reinvestment Zone No. 2
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on an Interlocal Agreement between the City of Corinth and Denton County, concerning Denton
County's participation in Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
On September 5, 2019, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 19-09-05-32 creating the Tax Increment
Reinvestment Zone (the "TIRZ"). The purpose of the TIRZ is to assist the community with achieving its vision for
sustainable growth and prosperity --- as articulated in the Strategic Plan and the Comprehensive Plan --- by
leveraging the tax increment revenues generated within the boundaries of the zone to finance public infrastructure
and other related improvements to attract investment.

In the relative short time that the TIRZ has been in existence, only the City is contributing tax increment towards
financing public infrastructure and other related improvements needed to enable and encourage development. The
City is contributing 50 percent of its tax increment towards such projects over a period of 36 years. The City's tax
contributions, if combined with contributions from Denton County (the "County") can be significantly enhanced in
support of the community's vision for growth and development.

Towards that end, the City and the County have been working diligently to craft an Interlocal Agreement (the
"Agreement") over several months that outlines the County's participation in the TIRZ. Per the Agreement, those
properties and projects identified within the TIRZ as Area 3 (the Taylor and surrounding properties) and Area 8
(the Long Lake and surrounding properties) will not be included as projects that will receive tax increment
contributions from the County. The County expressed strong interest in partnering with the City to provide
additional financing for the development of the Long Lake and surrounding properties provided that the
development, to the reasonable satisfaction of the County Commissioners Court, will deliver an iconic project.

Other components of the Agreement include: (i) the County being able to appoint three (3) members to the TIRZ
Board of Directors and (ii) that any amendment to the TIRZ Project Plan that would increase the number of
approved projects not listed in the TIRZ Project Plan requires additional approval of the Denton County
Commissioners Court.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Agreement as presented.

                                             121



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    12.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: Amendment to the Ordinance Creating Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on an amendment to Ordinance No. 19-09-05-32 relative to Tax Increment Financing
Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Corinth, Texas (TIRZ).

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The City Council adopted Ordinance No. 19-09-05-32 creating the TIRZ on September 5, 2019. The purpose of the
TIRZ is to leverage the tax increment to finance public infrastructure and other related public improvements to spur
increased investment primarily within the community's emerging downtown area and along Interstate Highway
35E. Since the adoption of the TIRZ, the City continued to engage Denton County (the "County") in discussions
about contributing their tax increment to strengthen the financial capabilities of the TIRZ. Those discussions
yielded an Interlocal Agreement (the "ILA") with the following key considerations in order to secure support:
  

That the County would receive equal representation on the TIRZ Board of Directors appointed to consider
and approve financing for projects within the TIRZ. That equal representation would consist of three (3)
appointments from the City and three (3) from the County. The appointees from Corinth need not be
residents of Corinth.
That the County would have the ability to review, consider and approve any amendments to the project plan
and financing plan for the TIRZ that would increase the number of approved projects.

These points of agreement necessitate an amendment to Ordinance No. 19-09-05-32 creating the TIRZ to ensure
consistency with the ILA. Accordingly, Section 4 of the ordinance was redlined to reflect those amendments, and
those redlines are attached for the consideration of the City Council. The remaining provisions of the Ordinance
remain unchanged and in effect.

RECOMMENDATION
The recommendation from Staff is that the City Council approve the amendments to Section 4 as presented.

                                             122



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    13.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: Resolution of the City Council Consenting to Legislation Creating Agora Municipal

Management District No. 1
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on a Resolution of the City Council consenting to legislation creating Agora Municipal
Management District No. 1.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The Strategic Plan and the Comprehensive Plan articulate a common vision that is rooted within the manifestation
of an energetic and vibrant downtown district --- Agora --- anchored by a future commuter rail station and a
signature park. Towards that end, the City has explored multiple revenue generation sources including, potentially,
the creation of a Municipal Management District (MMD).

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 375 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended, an MMD may be
created to "promote, develop, encourage, and maintain employment, commerce, economic development, and the
public welfare" and to "further the public purposes of development and diversification of the economy". A wide
range of cities and counties across Texas have created and leveraged MMDs to finance and construct public
infrastructure and other improvements to advance various economic development initiatives.

An MMD --- Agora Municipal Management District No. 1 --- is proposed for key properties within the downtown
district to encourage development. Creation of a district in Corinth requires approval of the Texas Legislature and, if
approved, Agora Municipal Management District No. 1 can be strategically paired with the Tax Increment
Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) to generate revenues to finance public infrastructure and other improvements to secure
development. Generally, an MMD may generate revenues through three (3) sources: ad valorem taxes (which
requires an election within the district), assessments (which are limited to property owners within the district) and
the issuance of debt (which requires the approval of the governing body). It is anticipated that the creation of an
MMD would supplement the tax increment revenues generated within the TIRZ and vastly expand the financial
capabilities of the City to undertake critical public infrastructure and other improvements, particularly within
Agora.

Towards that end, the attached Resolution seeks the City Council's consent to pursue legislation creating Agora
Municipal Management District No. 1. The attached Resolution strengthens Corinth's case for creation of an MMD
as it demonstrates to the Texas Legislature, the governing body that approves such districts, the City's intent and
support.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Resolution as presented.

                                             123



Attachments
Resolution Supporting Agora MMD 

                                             124



CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-12-17-28 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS 

EXPRESSING THE  CONSENT OF THE CITY TO DEVELOP LEGISLATION TO 

BE PRESENTED TO THE TEXAS LEGISLATURE TO CREATE THE “AGORA 

MUNICIPAL MANAGEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1”  (“AGORA MMD”); PLEDGING 

THE CITY’S COOPERATION TO CONTINUE TO WORK WITH THE 

DEVELOPER TO DRAFT PROPOSED LEGISLATION BENEFICIAL TO BOTH 

PARTIES FOR THE CREATION OF THE AGORA MMD; RESERVING THE 

CITY’S RIGHT TO WITHDRAW ITS CONSENT DUE TO SUBSTANTIVE 

CHANGES TO THE LEGISLATION; PROVIDING FOR THE INCORPORATION 

OF PREMISES; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Corinth (the “CITY”) owns or intends to own approximately 23.49 

acres of undeveloped land and desires to engage Wolverine Interests, LLC (the “DEVELOPER”), to 

design and construct a master-planned mixed-use community on said land (the “DEVELOPMENT”) 

that will be a catalyst project within Corinth’s urban core; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to produce, nurture and sustain a thriving downtown district with 

a rich mix of retail, restaurant, residential, office, civic and other uses in proximity to a future commuter 

rail station; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City finds that, if developed in accordance with the plans 

presented to the City, the construction of the Development will significantly elevate the quality of life 

within the City, enhance the City’s image and increase the City’s sales and property tax revenue; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Developer proposed creation of the Agora Municipal Management District  

No. 1 (the “DISTRICT”) which, if created, could provide a mechanism for financing necessary public 

improvements within the District, to include, without limitation, a performing arts venue; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the public interest to consent to introduct ion 

of legislation creating the District, will work with the Developer to finalize draft legislation, and 

supports passage of such legislation creating the District by the Texas Legislature. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CORINTH, TEXAS THAT: 

 

PART 1. The above and foregoing recitals are found to be true and correct and are 

incorporated into the body of this Ordinance for all purposes. 

 

PART 2. The City Council hereby supports the introduction and passage of legislat ion 

during the current Texas Legislative Session creating the “Agora Municipal Management District No. 

                                             125



PAGE 2 OF 2 

1”; provided that such legislation does not substantively differ from that agreed upon by the City and 

Developer.  

 

PART 3. The City Council retains the right to withdraw its support from the legislat ion 

creating the District if, during the legislative process, the provisions in the legislation agreed upon 

between Developer and City is substantively amended. 

 

PART 4. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or provision of this resolution, or the 

application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall to any extent be held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unconstitutional, the remaining sections, subsections, clauses, 

phrases, and provisions of this resolution, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, 

shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated. 

 

PART 5. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this resolution and any other 

regulation or rule prescribed by charter, another ordinance, resolution or other authorization of the 

City, the provisions of this ordinance shall control. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all rights and 

remedies of the City are expressly saved as to any and all complaints, actions, claims, or lawsuits, 

which have been initiated or have arisen under or pursuant to such conflicting resolution, or portion 

thereof, on the date of adoption of this resolution shall continue to be governed by the provisions of 

that resolution and for that purpose the conflicting resolution shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

PART 6. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval. 

 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, 

TEXAS on this the 17th day of December 2020. 

APPROVED: 

 

 

             

       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

      

Lana Wylie, City Secretary 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 

 
      

Patricia A. Adams, City Attorney 

                                             126



   
    PUBLIC HEARING    14.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: Comprehensive Plan Amendment
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Beadle, Director  Submitted By: Miguel Inclan, Planner
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement & Proactive Government
Regional Cooperation
Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Conduct a Public Hearing to consider testimony and take action on an amendment to the City’s Comprehensive
Master Plan “Envision Corinth 2040” adopted by Ordinance No. 20-07-16-22, relative to removing the designation
Educational Place Type from the Future Land Use Map, and reassigning parcels as Institutional/Public/Civic and
Mixed-Use TOD Place Types and related amendments. (CPA20-0001 Comprehensive Plan Amendment)

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The Envision Corinth 2040 Comprehensive Plan was adopted on July 16, 2020. It is the primary guiding document
for the community and economic development of the City of Corinth. To accomplish the goals of the
Comprehensive Plan, it is necessary to make amendments to the Future Land Use and Development Strategy Map
by updating parcel designations and redefining the Place Types outlined in the Future Land Use and Development
Strategy.
 
During the finalization of the Land Use and Development Strategy Map, parcels that had been labeled as
Educational Place Type were not updated to reflect the combined Institutional/Public/Civic Place Type that resulted
out of a combination of Educational and Institutional land use categories. Thus, there are three parcels currently
labeled under a nonexistent Educational Place Type. This ordinance will re-designate the parcels as follows: 

The southern educational property (north of FM 2181) should be labeled as Institutional/Public/Civic Place
Type;
The western educational property (along Oakmont Drive) should be labeled as Institutional/Public/Civic
Place Type; and
NCTC Campus located within the future TOD area in the north of the City should be labeled as Mixed
Use-TOD Place Type.

 
In addition to the map amendments, the re-designation of the North Central Texas College (NCTC) parcel to
Mixed-Use Transit Oriented District (TOD) Place Type requires an amendment to said Place Type definition to
include educational and civic uses such as the NCTC campus to support the development strategy for the future
City Center district.

RECOMMENDATION
City Council Agenda and packet publication preceded the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting to be held on

                                             127



City Council Agenda and packet publication preceded the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting to be held on
Monday, December 14, 2020.

Staff will provide the Commission's recommendation at the December 17, 2020 City Council Meeting.

Staff recommends approval as presented.

Attachments
Consultant Memorandum 
Existing Land Use and Development Strategy Map 
Proposed Land Use and Development Strategy Map 
Ordinance 

                                             128



   

kimley-horn.com 801 Cherry Street, Unit 11, Suite 1300  Fort Worth, Texas 76102 817 335 6511 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: November 20, 2020 

To: Helen-Eve Beadle, City of Corinth 

From: Brad Lonberger, Kimley-Horn 

RE: Educational Place Types 

 

Currently there is not a definition for an Educational Place Type and there are three parcels currently 
labeled as such on the Place Types Map on page 43 of the City of Corinth Comprehensive Plan. 

When assembling the place types for the plan, a series of adjustments were performed to align typical 
land uses together to form compatible mixed-use development types. During this reorganization 
process, the Institutional land use category and the Educational land use category were combined into a 
single category and our team created a place type definition named Institutional/Public/Civic.  

While our team were creating the place types map and definitions, there were a series of meetings 
being conducted to master plan the future TOD site in the City. With this planning process, the 
opportunity for NCTC campus to become better connected to the TOD and made available for additional 
mixed-use development potential. Our team adopted this plan as the active place type named Mixed-
Use TOD, and NCTC was intended to be a part of that.   

Through the finalization of the Place Types Map, the change of Educational to Institutional/Public/Civic 
and NCTC to Mixed-Use TOD was overlooked and those remaining three parcels were not updated 
appropriately. The parcels should have been organized as follows: 

• The southern educational property (north of FM 2181) should be labeled as 
Institutional/Public/Civic Place Type; 

• The western educational property (along Oakmont Drive) should be labeled as 
Institutional/Public/Civic Place Type; and 

• NCTC Campus located within the future TOD area in the north of the City should be labeled as 
Mixed Use-TOD place type to better connect the large property and campus as an opportunity 
for future TOD development. 

It is our recommendation that a simple map amendment be performed to match the intended place 
type categories as stated prior.  In addition, the allowance for NCTC to be expanded to support the TOD 
and their own services should be made available.  This should resolve any misconceptions of those 
mapped parcels that are labeled as Educational in the current adopted map. 

 

 

C. Brad Lonberger 

Senior Project Manager 

                                             129



43

ENVISION CORINTH 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The following pages provide the detailed Place 
Types definitions which address:

 » Purpose and Character of each Place 
Type category including guidance on how 
Place Types designations can help with 
future zoning decisions

 » Use Mix and Density Ranges that are 
appropriate for successful development 
within the different Place Type categories 
including images to illustrate compatible 
building types and scale

 » Key Design Priorities to enhance 
the appearance and character of 
development within each specific Place 
Type category including how each place 
type addresses the City’s overarching 
sustainability goals

 » Sustainability Priorities to identify the 
appropriate green tools and initiatives 
that fit the place type context. 

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

LEGEND

Corinth City Limits
Neighborhood
Mixed-Residential
Mixed Use - TOD
Mixed Use - Node
Retail/Commercial
Corridor Commercial
Office/Employment
Institutional/Public/Civic

Parks/Open Space

Railroad
Highway
Major/Minor Arterial
Collector
Local

±

Educational

                                             130



                                             131



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-12-17- 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS, ADOPTING 

AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING 

FOR THE REMOVAL OF THE EDUCATIONAL PLACE TYPE FROM THE 

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY MAP; PROVIDING FOR THE 

REDESIGNATION OF PARCELS FROM THE EDUCATIONAL PLACE 

TYPE TO INSTITUTIONAL/PUBLIC/CIVIC AND MIXED-USE TRANSIT 

ORIENTED DISTRICT PLACE TYPES; PROVIDING FOR AN 

AMENDMENT TO THE LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

MAP; PROVIDING FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE DEFINITION OF THE 

MIXED-USE TRANSIT ORIENTED DISTRICT PLACE TYPE; PROVIDING 

A CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Corinth, Texas is a home rule city acting under its charter 

adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 

9 of the Local Government Code; and 

 WHEREAS, in 2020, the City Council adopted a Comprehensive Plan, entitled 

“Envision Corinth”, to establish policies for guiding the long-range development of the City; and  

 WHEREAS,  the Corinth Planning and Zoning Commission has conducted a public 

hearing regarding the proposed amendments to Comprehensive Plan and after due deliberation, 

has recommended that the City Council adopt the amendments; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the proposed amendments and additions to the 

Comprehensive Plan are appropriate, and that it is in the public’s best interest and in support of 

the health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the citizens of Corinth that the amendments be 

adopted; NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS THAT: 

SECTION 1. 

Incorporation of Premises 

                                             132



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ORDINANCE NO. 20-12-17- 

Page 2 

 

 

 The City Council adopts the foregoing recitals set forth in the preamble hereof as 

findings, and such findings are incorporated herein in their entirety. 

 

SECTION 2. 

Amendments 

 The Envision Corinth Comprehensive Plan’s Land Use and Development Strategy Map 

is hereby amended so it shall consist of the elements in the attached Exhibit “A”, which is 

incorporated by reference herein. The Mixed-Use TOD Place Type definition is hereby amended 

to include educational and civic land use types.  

SECTION  3. 

Comprehensive Plan Not Zoning 

 A majority of the City Council may amend the Comprehensive Plan at any time or repeal 

it and adopt a new Comprehensive Plan.  The policies of the Comprehensive Plan adopted hereby 

may only be implemented by ordinances duly adopted by the City Council and shall not 

constitute land use or zoning regulations or establish zoning district boundaries. 

         SECTION 4. 

Cumulative Repealer 

 This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of ordinances of the City of Corinth, 

except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of such 

ordinances or any other action of the City Council amending or adopting provisions of the 

Comprehensive Plan, in which event the conflicting provisions of such ordinances are hereby 

repealed. 

SECTION 5. 

Savings Clause 

                                             133



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ORDINANCE NO. 20-12-17- 

Page 3 

 

 

 In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Ordinance and any other 

regulation or rule prescribed by charter, another ordinance, resolution or other authorization of 

the City, the provisions of this Ordinance shall control. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all rights 

and remedies of the City are expressly saved as to any and all complaints, actions, claims, or 

lawsuits, which have been initiated or have arisen under or pursuant to such conflicting 

Ordinance, or portion thereof, on the date of adoption of this Ordinance shall continue to be 

governed by the provisions of that Ordinance and for that purpose the conflicting Ordinance shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 6. 

Severability Clause 

 It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, 

sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are severable and if any phrase, clause, 

sentence, paragraph, or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by any court 

of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been 

enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such 

unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section, and said remaining portions shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 7. 

Effective Date 

 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval, 

and it is so ordained. 

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS           DAY OF                          , 2020.  

 

                                             134



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ORDINANCE NO. 20-12-17- 

Page 4 

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

     __________________________ 

      Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

__________________________________ 

Patricia Adams, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                             135



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ORDINANCE NO. 20-12-17- 

Page 5 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

AMENDED LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY MAP 

                                             136



   
    PUBLIC HEARING/BUSINESS ITEM    15.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 12/17/2020  
Title: Walton Ridge Redesign- PD, Planned Development Rezoning (#ZAPD20-0001)
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Beadle, Director 
Submitted By: Michelle Mixell, Planning & Development Manager
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure
Development
Economic
Development 
Citizen
Engagement &
Proactive
Government
Regional
Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Conduct a Public Hearing and consider testimony and act upon a rezoning request by the applicant, Skorburg
Company, to amend the comprehensive zoning ordinance and zoning map of the City of Corinth, each being a part
of the Unified Development Code of the City, by amending two zoning classifications from PD-51 (with a base
zoning district of SF-4, Single-Family Residential (Detached)) and Industrial to Planned Development Zoning
District with a base zoning designation of SF-4, Single-Family (Detached) and MF-3, Multi-Family Residential
totaling approximately ±49.798 acres and comprised of two tracts; Tract 1 totaling approximately ±36.219 acres and
proposed for single-family residential use, and Tract 2 totaling approximately ±13.579 acres and proposed for
multifamily residential use.  Subject property is located on the north side of Walton Drive and west of Shady Rest
lane. 

Staff Presentation
Applicant Presentation
Public Hearing
Response by Applicant
Response by Staff

Take Action

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Overview:
 
The applicant is requesting approval of a PD, Planned Development rezoning for future development of ±49.798
acres located on the north side of Walton Drive and west of Shady Rest Lane, and consists of two tracts as
follows (reference Exhibit “B”): 
 
Tract 1
 
Tract 1 consists of ±36.219 acres and is proposed for a 164 lot single family detached residential subdivision with
a varying lot sizes and several common open space lots located throughout and includes a unique new urbanist
design concept for the western portion of the Tract 1 by fronting lots onto two common open space lots (Mews
Lots), of approximately  ± 1 acre each. 

                                             137



Lots), of approximately  ± 1 acre each. 
 
Tract 1 is effectively a redesign of a prior approved Planned Development for the Trails at Shady Rest (Approved
12-06-18 for 98 lots on 26.39 acres), and now incorporates an additional ±9.8 acres in order to:
  

Address some previous grading challenges
Preserve an existing grove of trees in a deeded common open space “Mews” lot not saved in the prior PD
approval
Eliminate the incompatible existing Industrial Zoning District adjacent to residentially zoned land
Propose an alternative pedestrian oriented streetscape design within the western portion of the tract
(promoting the concepts of the Envision Corinth Comprehensive Plan for the Mixed Use-Transit Oriented
Development)
Provide a transition from the larger lot “Traditional Single-Family” homes on the eastern portion of Tract 1
to the area west and south of the western portion of Tract 1 (near North Central Texas College and existing
DCTA light rail line) which is envisioned with a variety of higher density housing types and mix of uses as
part of the Mixed Use-Transit Oriented Development outlined in the Envision Corinth Comprehensive Plan
(Adopted July 2020)

 
Specifically the developer is proposing a mixture of product types on lots forty (40), fifty (50), sixty (60) and
eighty (80) feet in width, and comprised entirely of single family detached homes (reference Exhibit “C”- Lot
Layout and Specifications)
 
In addition to the previously mentioned “Mews Lot” open spaces, the developer is providing several smaller
linear deeded common open space areas totaling  ±1.3 acres and will also include a variety of amenities such as
benches, picnic tables, and dog waste baskets ( reference Exhibit “D”).
 
In addition to 5-foot sidewalks throughout the neighborhood, the developer will be constructing important trail
linkages as identified in the recently adopted Park, Recreation, and Open Space Plan (adopted September 2020). 
Where trail linkages are located within common open space lots, the developer will be providing a public
pedestrian access easement.
 
The varying mix of higher density product types, interconnecting system of trails and sidewalks will facilitate
pedestrian access to any future transit and retail/dining opportunities which may develop in the future.
 
Existing Zoning Standards “SF-4” and Proposed Modified Standards:
 
The following table, “General and Lot Specific Dimensional Requirements” presents the Existing Zoning
SF-4 Single-Family (Detached) base zoning district and the Proposed Modified Standards applicable to Tract 1.  
  

 
 
SF-4 (Base
Zoning)

Walton Ridge Redesign Planned Development 
Modified Standards
Patio Homes/
Mews Lots Traditional Single-Family Lots*

Lot Sizes   40’ 50’s 60’s 80’s

Minimum Lot Width 70’ at building
line 40’  50’ 60’

80’*
*All lots
backing to
adjacent
existing SF
subdivision

Minimum Lot Depth 100’ 100’  100’ 100’ 115’
Minimum Lot Area 7,500 SF 4,000 SF  5,500 SF 6,600 SF 9,500 SF

                                             138



Minimum Area/Dwelling
Unit (SF)/ Minimum Floor
Area

1,500 SF 1,500 SF  1,500 SF 1,800 SF 2,000 SF

Minimum Front Yard
Setback 25’

5’ minimum with
Mews Frontage
10’ Minimum with
Street Frontage 

 
20’ for J-swing garages 
25’ for front entry garages 

Minimum Side Yard
Setback 7.5’ 5’ 5’

Minimum Rear Yard
Setback 20’ 20’ minimum (for

driveways) 

10’ except:
15’ when backing up to an adjacent
thoroughfare.
20’ when backing up to an existing
single-family neighborhood

Maximum Height 35’ / 2.5
Stories 36’ / 2.5 Stories  36’ / 2.5 Stories 

Maximum Building
Coverage 30% 70%  70% 

Garage Orientation  
20’
from rear property
line 

All front facing garages must be even
with the front building façade or recessed
from the front building façade.

 
Key Modifications:
  
Walton Ridge Redesign Planned Development Requirements 
and Modified Standards

a.

UDC Section 2.09.01 Landscape Regulations shall apply, except that a modification to specifically
permit the required landscaping planting material to be located within the right-of-way as shown on
Exhibit “E”, and may be accounted for in part, through the replacement requirements of Protected Trees
removed as part of the development of Tract 1 for the portion of the tract designed with 40’ lot widths, is
hereby granted, subject to the following conditions:

  Replacement tree caliper inches as required under UDC Section 2.09.02 may be used to meet the
planting requirements (shade trees only) within the right-of-way as shown on Exhibit “E”.

1.

Justification: UDC does not require street trees though the developer is proposing street trees to create a more
“new urbanist style of development within the “Mews Lots” area (western portion of the tract near the Mixed
Use-TOD).  Consider permitting required replacement trees (shade trees) in these locations. 

b.
UDC Section 2.09.01.2.B.(a) (1) Landscaping Regulations for Attached and Detached Single Family
Developments shall apply, except that, a modification to specifically permit the landscaping tree planting
calculations as required for the 40’ lots is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions:   

 

Tree caliper inches required by this section (Section 2.09.01.2.B.(a)(1)) for front yard tree plantings,
shall permit required trees to be planted on the Mews Open Space Lots; 27X-Block E and Lot
27X-Block F and not within the front yards of 40’ lots.  Required trees may also be satisfied by
planting in the rear yard.  A maximum of one (1) shade tree in the rear yard shall be counted.

1.

 

Tree caliper inches as required by Section 2.09.01.2.B.(a) (1) may be satisfied by the planting of
replacement trees (shade trees only) as required under UDC Section 2.09.02. Alternative Compliance
– Tree Preservation-Tree Preservation, and thereby reducing the required caliper inches for
replacement trees in direct proportion to tree caliper inches required in Landscaping Requirements
(Section 2.09.01.2.B.(a) (1)) for the portion of the tract designated with 40’ lot widths.  This provision
will be reviewed and considered at the time of Alternative Compliance-Tree Preservation Application
as presented in a Tree Protection Plan detailing proposed replacement of protected trees removed on
site.

2.

At a minimum, the location of shade trees within Lots 27X Blocks E and F shall include a linear
placement 50 feet on center to create a continuous formal canopy running parallel to the required

3.

                                             139



placement 50 feet on center to create a continuous formal canopy running parallel to the required
sidewalks thereby creating a more formal park green.    

Justification:  Front yard setbacks on the 40’ lots are too short to accommodate on lot tree plantings as required
by Section 2.09.01.2.B.(a)(1).  Dwellings will be in “new urbanist style” located close to the street or mews lot. 
Additionally, the tree plantings being permitted in the common open space lots would be for the enjoyment of the
entire Walton Ridge neighborhood. 

c.

UDC Section 2.09.01.2.B.(b) Landscaping Regulations for Attached and Detached Single Family 
Developments shall apply, except that a modification to specifically permit the location of trees to be
planted within the parkway, the area between the back of curb and the right-of-way/property based on the
alternative Streetscape Design presented in Exhibit “E”, is hereby granted, subject to the following
conditions:

 

Shall be planted as shown on Exhibit “E”, within bulb-out section as well as between the sidewalk
and curb (parkway area).

1.

Trees planted within the parkway shall be preserved, maintained and replaced in kind by the
Homeowners’ Association in the event of removal, destruction, decline, or death as provided for in
the restrictive covenants. The detail of such maintenance obligation shall be set forth in the restrictive
covenants and shall be recorded prior to recording of the Final Plat.

2.

Trees planted in right-of-way may be counted towards required replacement trees to mitigate
Protected Tree removal on Tract 1 as considered at the time of Alternative Compliance-Tree
Preservation Application based on a Tree Protection Plan showing proposed replacement locations.

3.

Justification: Street trees in the right-of-way are necessary to create the “character” of the City Center as
contemplated in the Envision Corinth 2040 Comprehensive Plan (July 2020) for the Mixed Use-TOD and Mixed
Residential areas. 

d.

UDC Section 2.09.02 Tree Preservation Regulations shall apply, except that a modification to
specifically exclude Protected Trees from replacement calculations when located within the Street
Right-of-Way, Building Pads (including 5’ from the edge of the building pad), Utility Easements, or
Driveways, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions:
 

 

Shall apply to Tract 1 as delineated on Exhibit “B”.1.
The existing grove of Protected Trees located within the Mews Lots Open Space Lot 27X-Block E
(and as shown in greater detail on Exhibits “E” and “F”) shall be preserved and shall be identified in
the Tree Survey and Protection Plan as part of an Alternative Compliance Application at or prior to
time of Preliminary Plat application.   Protected Trees preserved on site shall be maintained and
replaced in kind by the Homeowners’ Association in the event of removal, destruction, decline, or
death as provided for in the restrictive covenants. The detail of such maintenance obligation shall be
set forth in the restrictive covenants and shall be recorded prior to recording of the Final Plat.

2.

Justification: To permit the interpretation of tree preservation regulations as approved as directed by prior staff
where it was past practice to exclude Street Right-of-Way, Building Pads (including 5’ from the edge of the
building pad), Utility Easements, or Driveways from Protected Tree replacement calculations – This direction was
specifically applied to the review of Preliminary Plat #PP19-0001 – Trails at Shady Rest. 

e.

UDC Section 3.05.13 Street Design Criteria shall apply, except that a modification to specifically permit
new urbanist street design standards to include on-street parallel parking/bulb-outs, shade trees, and
other amenities including benches and street lighting as represented on Exhibit “E”, is hereby granted,
subject to the following:
 

 

Conditions:
Street design shall follow the concept and cross-section shown in Exhibit “E” and be permitted within
the portion of Tract 1 serving the Patio Homes/Mews Lots. 

1.

Consists of various street sections: 
30-foot right-of-way with a 24-foot Alley sectiona.
50-foot right-of-way with 

31-foot back-to-back pavement street section – on-street parking allowedi.
25-foot back-to-back pavement street section – no parkingi.

b.

2.

                                             140



33-foot back-to-back pavement street section – parallel parking on one sideii.
41-foot back-to-back pavement street section – parallel parking on both sidesiii.

Justification:  Necessary to create the “urban character” of the City Center as contemplated in the Envision
Corinth 2040 Comprehensive Plan (July 2020) for the Mixed Use-TOD and Mixed Residential areas.  The
incorporation of this alternative design is intended to promote pedestrian use and comfort along the streetscape. 

f. UDC Section 2.09.04 Building Façade Material Standards shall apply, except that all garages shall
incorporate a minimum of two (2) of the following architectural features as follows:

 

Sconce lighting1.
Decorative banding or molding2.
Decorative overhangs above garage doors3.
Eyebrow soldier course over garage doors4.
Decorative details above garage5.
Decorative brackets on garage doors (“carriage-style”)6.
Columns flanking garage doors7.

Justification: N/A 

g.
UDC Section 4.02 Fence and Screening Regulations shall apply, except as follows, and is hereby granted,
subject to the following conditions:
 

 

Developer shall provide an 8-foot spruce fence with masonry columns along the portions of the
Property that abut Shady Rest Lane. Where there is a detention pond, the fencing will be tubular steel
with masonry columns. 

1.

Developer shall provide a 6-foot spruce fence with masonry columns along the portions of the
development that abut Walton Road. Where there is a detention pond, the fencing will be tubular steel
with masonry columns. 

2.

Developer shall install an 8-foot spruce fence along the residential backyards of the northern
boundary of Block A (Lots 2-8 and 10-18) and eastern boundary of Block K (lots 1-9) prior to
issuance of 1st building permit, by phase, if constructed in phases.  Reference Exhibit “B”.

3.

Fencing as noted in items 1-2 above shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowners’ Association.4.
Other property boundaries will have spruce fencing as installed by the builders. 5.

Justification: Developer is proposing an 8-foot fence in order to address concerns raised at the 11-18-20
Developer Neighborhood Meeting with surrounding residents.
Park and Trail Land Dedication:
 
UDC Section 3.05.10 requires that Park and Trail dedication for Residentially Zoned Property be considered and
approved by City Council prior to the submission of Preliminary Plat.  Because this PD identifies park and trail
land to be deeded as part of the Homeowners’ Association Common Open Space lots, the approval for such has
been incorporated into the overall PD approval process as outlined in the table below and with relevant
conditions noted.
  
UDC Section 3.05.10 Park and Trail Dedications for Residentially Zoned Property shall apply, and the
requirements are hereby satisfied, subject to the following conditions:
 

 

Open Space Lots 27X-Block E and 27X-Block F along the Mews Lots shall be reserved and deeded
as “common open space” for the enjoyment of the Walton Ridge neighborhood and noted as such in
the restrictive covenants.

1.

All common open space lots shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowners’ Association.2.
Trails, sidewalks, and amenities shall be located within the common open space shall be maintained
and replaced in kind in the event to removal, disrepair, and/or destruction as provided for the
restrictive covenants.  The detail of such ownership and maintenance obligation shall be set forth in
the covenants and shall be recorded prior to recording of the Final Plat.

3.

All trails and sidewalks shall be provided a public pedestrian access easement.4.
In the event that Tract 1 needs to develop in two phases and/or Phase 2 is eliminated, Park and Trail
dedication requirements shall be reevaluated for Phase 1 as a standalone project at time of
preliminary plat and may require the addition fees-in-lieu-of land dedication to satisfy UDC

5.

                                             141



preliminary plat and may require the addition fees-in-lieu-of land dedication to satisfy UDC
requirements.
Required landscape plantings and locations of required amenities will be further defined at time of
Landscape Plan submission.

6.

Justification: (1) The Developer is deeding approximately 2 acres of common open space land (Lot 27X Block
E and Lot 27X Block F) in the form of a Mews/Green as shown in Exhibit “F”. (2) Developer is deeding
approximately ±1.3 acres of linear common open space lots, and (3) Developer is constructing a 6-foot and
10-foot trail system as generally shown on Exhibit “D”.
Amenities:
 
The following table lists amenities proposed for Tract 1.
  
 
1. The following amenities shall be required in the common open space areas: 

 

a.

All common open space sidewalks will be a minimum width of 5-feet, except that this width may be
reduced to 4-feet for sidewalks required along the 40’ lots that front directly onto Mews Open Space
Lots (Lot 27X-Block E and 27X-Block F) in order to provide interconnectivity along the front of the
dwellings and out to the adjoining public street and to the main trail located within the common open
space lots and where necessary based on the alternative street design shown on Exhibit “E”.  A public
pedestrian access easement shall be provided in these locations.
 

b.

The trail along Shady Rest Lane will be a minimum width of 10-feet and shall be a part of the City of
Corinth’s Master Trail Plan.  Trails shall be provided in public access easements when outside of the
public right-of-way. Trails shall be maintained and replaced in kind by the Homeowners’ Association as
shall be provided for in the restrictive covenants. The detail of such maintenance obligation shall be set
forth in the restrictive covenants and shall be recorded prior to recording of the Final Plat.
 

c.
The trail connecting Shady Rest to Walton Ridge will be 6-feet in width and travel through the single
family (Tract 1) and multifamily (Tract 2).  Exact location of trail connection through the multifamily
tract will be determined at the time of the multi-family concept plan PD amendment. 

d.

Pocket parks (Mews Lots) and linear green space lots shall be incorporated throughout the property and
shall include amenities including but not limited to benches, picnic tables, and dog waste baskets. 
Pocket parks (Mews Lots) and amenities shall be owned and maintained by the
Homeowners’ Association for the property. 

e. 3” tree plantings at 50-feet on center will be planted along Walton Drive and Shady Rest. 
 

Justification: Previously approved PD allowed for 4-foot sidewalks throughout. 

2. Common lots will have the following amenities to be owned and maintained by the Homeowners’
Association as shall be provided for in the restrictive covenants: 

 

a.

Lot 9X Block A and Block K – Tubular steel fencing with masonry columns shall be installed along the
detention pond. A 5-foot sidewalk and sod shall also be installed along the interior right-of-way.  Park
benches (a minimum of two benches), dog waste baskets, and picnic tables shall also be incorporated
along the trails. 

b.
Lot 19X Block A. - 10-foot trails with tubular steel fencing with masonry columns along the eastern
boundaries. Park benches (a minimum of 2 benches), dog waste baskets, and picnic tables shall also be
incorporated along the trail. Sod will also be installed. 

c.

Shady Rest Linear Open Space Lot 10X-Block B - A 10-foot-wide trail shall be provided with sod.  In
addition, an 8-foot spruce fence with masonry columns shall be provided along the residential backyards
and tubular steel fencing with masonry columns along the section not backing up to lots.  Park
benches (a minimum of 2 benches) and dog waste baskets shall be incorporated.

d. Mews Open Space Lots (27X – Block E and 27X - Block F) – 6-foot-wide meandering trails with park
benches and dog waste baskets and picnic tables shall be incorporated. Sod shall also be installed. 

                                             142



e.

Walton Ridge Linear Open Space Lot 7X-Block J and Open Space Lot 7X - Block H - 6-foot spruce
fence with masonry columns shall be installed along the residential backyards.  A 5-foot sidewalk and
sod will shall be installed along the right-of-way or within a public pedestrian access easement (exact
location will be determined at time of Preliminary Plat) along Walton Drive and as generally shown on
Exhibit “D”.

 
Phasing
Tract 1 may be completed in two phases.  While at the time of this PD-51 rezoning it is contemplated that Tract 1
will be platted and constructed within a single phase, it is recognized that due to timing constraints, a second
phase may be necessary as shown on Exhibit “C”.  If a second phase (Phase 2) on Tract 1 is determined at the
time of preliminary platting stage, Phase 1 shall be designed and constructed as a standalone phase and shall be
subject to the conditions listed in Development Regulations above addressing Park and Trail Land Dedication.
 
Tract 2
 
Tract 2 of the property consists of  ±13.579 acres for future multi-family uses as shown on Exhibit “B” and is
contemplated to be developed at a future date following the principles of new urbanism and transit oriented
development as outlined in the Envision Corinth 2040 Comprehensive Plan (Adopted July 2020).  Tract 2 is
unique in the PD rezoning in that any development proposed for the Property shall be subject to a subsequent PD
Amendment Approval process at the time of development interest.
 
Key Modifications (Tract 2):
 

a.

UDC Section 2.10.09 Planned Development Application and Review shall apply except that, a
modification to specifically permit Tract 2 to be a component of this PD-51 and shown with a base
zoning district MF-3 (without a PD Concept Plan, PD Design Statement, or associated Land Use
Regulations), is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions:

 

Any future development proposed on Tract 2 (Exhibit “B”) shall be subject to: (i) a Planned
Development Amendment Approval Process, (ii) detailed PD Concept Plan, (iii) PD Design
Statement, and (iv) additional Design Development Standards and Use Regulations (e.g.,
non-residential/commercial uses located on ground floor) that are in keeping with the “Mixed Use
-TOD” concepts as outlined in the Envision Corinth Comprehensive Plan (adopted July 2020). 

a.

Maximum density of 45 Dwelling Units per acre.b.
Minimum Setbacks: 5 feet for front, side and rear.c.
Maximum building height of 75 feet and 4 stories, though maximum may be exceeded for unoccupied
architectural features.

d.

Landscaping and formal open space/plaza design standards shall be determined at the time of PD
Amendment and shall at a minimum reflect the design principles of new urbanism relative to parking
lot location, screening, location, streetscape design and pedestrian amenities.

e.

Screening on Tract 2 adjacent to Tract 1, Single-Family will not be required.f.
Parking shall be provided as one space per bedroom, plus 0.1 space per unit for visitor parking and
leasing.  Parking may be accommodated through the combination design concepts of on-street and
off-street parking areas within the tract.

g.

Garden style apartments are prohibited.h.
Justification: (1) Necessary to afford flexibility in the design process due to the timing and participation of
public private partnerships needed to further the design of the Mixed Use -TOD/City Center, and (2) Tract 2 as
currently zoned is Industrial and is incompatible with adjacent single-family uses proposed for Tract 1.

Neighborhood Meeting:
 
On November 18, 2020, the developer conducted a neighborhood meeting at City Hall to seek input and receive
concerns from surrounding property owners. Approximately 25 residents attended and offered comments.  In
response, the developer made the following concessions to the concept plan including: (1) altering the width of
lots located along the northwestern portion of the property adjacent to the existing residential neighborhood to

                                             143



increase from a 50 -foot lot width to 80-feet in width, and (2) adding an 8-foot tall fence along the entire northern
boundary line and increasing the height of the fence of the lots backing up to Shady Rest Lane from 6-feet to
8-feet in height.

The PD Amendment presented improves upon the original design for the single family property. The additional
land provides for suitable land use adjacency and housing transitions to the City Center and TOD as
recommended in the "Envision Corinth 2040" Comprehensive Plan.

Future PD Amendments:
PD Amendments may be permitted by standalone Tracts; Tract 1 and Tract 2.

Supporting Documentation.  

EXHIBIT “B” - ZONING EXHIBIT (TRACTS 1 AND 2) & CONCEPT PLAN (TRACT 1)

EXHIBIT “C” - LOT LAYOUT AND SPECIFICATIONS (TRACT 1) – To be submitted
EXHIBIT “D” - COMMON OPEN SPACE LANDSCAPING AND TRAILS (TRACT 1) - 2 sheets
EXHIBIT “E” - STREETSCAPE RENDERING ON MEWS/PATIO HOME LOTS (TRACT 1)
EXHIBIT “F” - Tree Preservation MEWS LOT – (Lot 27X-Block E - Tract 1)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
 
The rezoning request for the subject property, as presented, is in accordance with the “Land Use and
Development Strategy” designations, Mixed-Residential and Mixed Use-TOD, set forth in the "Envision Corinth
2040" Comprehensive Plan.

PUBLIC NOTICES: 

Notice of the public hearing was published in the November 25, 2020, edition of the Denton Record-Chronicle.
Written public notices were mailed to all property owners located within 200 feet of the subject property
proposed for the zoning change on November 25, 2020.

 

RECOMMENDATION
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation:
City Council Agenda and packet publication preceded the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting to be held on
Monday, December 14, 2020.  Staff will provide the Commission’s recommendation at the December 17, 2020
City Council Meeting.
 
Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request as presented.

Attachments
Walton Ridge PD 51 Amend 
Staff Memo - Exhibits B-F 

                                             144



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
WALTON RIDGE REDESIGN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT #51 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, EACH BEING A PART OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE OF THE CITY, BY AMENDING TWO ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS FROM PD-51 
(WITH A BASE DISTRICT OF SF-4, SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (DETACHED)) AND 
INDUSTRIAL TO PD-PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT WITH A BASE 
ZONING DESIGNATION OF SF-4, SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (DETACHED) AND MF-
3, MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL APPROXIMATELY ±49.798 ACRES (2,169,219 SQUARE 
FEET) OF LAND IN THE J. P. WALTON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1389, CITY OF CORINTH, 
DENTON COUNTY, TEXAS; THE PROPERTY IS GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF 
WALTON DRIVE, SOUTH OF BLACK JACK LANE, SAND JACK DRIVE, AND DANBURY 
COVE/CIRCLE, EAST OF NORTH CORINTH STREET, AND WEST OF SHADY REST LANE; 
PROVIDING FOR THE INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; PROVIDING A LEGAL 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION; APPROVING A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN 
(EXHIBIT “B”); APPROVING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT LAND USE REGULATIONS 
(EXHIBIT “C”); PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED $2,000 A DAY FOR EACH 
VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL OCCUR ON EACH 
DAY THAT A VIOLATION OCCURS ON CONTINUES; PROVIDING A CUMULATIVE 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE;  PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Corinth, Texas has adopted Ordinance 13-05-02-08, which adopts a Unified Development 

Code of the City, which includes the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and which, in accordance with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, establishes zoning districts and adopts a Zoning Map; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the property is comprised of “Tract 1” and “Tract 2”, as described in Exhibit “A”(Tract 1 and Tract 2 
together the “Property”) with Tract 1 currently zoned PD-51 and Industrial and Tract 2 currently zoned as Industrial, and 
an authorized person having a proprietary interest in the Property has requested a change in the zoning classification of said 
Property to PD-Planned Development zoning district more specifically identified as Walton Ridge Redesign Planned 
Development District No. 51 (“PD-51”) with Tract 1 having base zoning designation of SF-4, Single Family Residential 
(Detached) and Tract 2, having base zoning designation of MF-3, Multi-Family under the City's Unified Development Code 
and designated on the City’s Zoning Map; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Corinth and the City Council of the City of 
Corinth, having given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and after holding due hearings and affording a full 
and fair hearing to all the property owners generally, and to the persons interested and situated in the affected area and in 
the vicinity thereof, the City of Corinth City Council is of the opinion that said change in zoning should be made; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the following factors in making a determination as to whether the 
requested change should be granted or denied: safety of the motoring public and pedestrians using the facilities in the area 
immediately surrounding the sites; safety from fire hazards and damages; noise producing elements and glare of the 
vehicular and stationary lights and effect of such lights on established character of neighborhoods; location, and types of 
signs and relation of signs to traffic control and adjacent property; street size and adequacy of width for traffic reasonably 
expected to be generated by the proposed use around the site and in the immediate neighborhood; adequacy of parking as 
determined by requirements of this ordinance for off-street parking facilities; location of ingress and egress points for 
parking and off-street loading spaces, and protection of public health by surfacing on all parking areas to control dust; effect 
on the promotion of health and the general welfare; effect on light and air; effect on the over-crowding of the land; effect 
on the concentration of population, and effect on transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks and other public facilities; 
and 
 

                                             145



Ordinance No.  
Page 2 of 24 
 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council further considered among other things the character of the proposed district and its 
peculiar suitability for particular use requested and the view to conserve the value of the buildings, and encourage the most 
appropriate use of the land throughout this City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the change in zoning for the Property promotes the health and the general 
welfare, provides adequate light and air, prevents the over-crowding of land, avoids undue concentration of population, and 
facilitates the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks and other public requirements; and the 
general health, safety and welfare of the community;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, 

TEXAS:  
SECTION 1. 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES 
 
 The above and foregoing recitals are found to be true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this 
Ordinance for all purposes. 

 
SECTION 2 

LEGAL PROPERTY DESCRIPTION; AMENDMENT 
 
That Ordinance 13-05-02-08, adopting the Unified Development Code of the City of Corinth (“UDC”), which UDC includes 
the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance that establishes zoning districts in accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan,  
and adopts the Zoning Map of the City of Corinth, is hereby amended to change the zoning classifications on approximately 
±49.798 acres of land described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Property”), from PD-51 and 
Industrial zoning district classifications to a PD-Planned Development zoning district subject to the regulations contained 
in this Ordinance and with Tract 1 having a base zoning designation of SF-4, Single Family Residential (Detached) and 
totaling 36.219 acres, and Tract 2 having a base zoning designation of MF-3, Multi-Family Residential and totaling 13.579  
acres and collectively identified as Walton Ridge Redesign Development District No. 51 (“PD-51”), and the Zoning Map 
of the City is also hereby amended to reflect the new zoning classification for the Property. 
 

SECTION 3. 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN 

 
The Planned Development Zoning Exhibit and Concept Plan (Tract 1) for the Property as set forth in Exhibit “B”, a copy 
of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, is hereby approved.  Additional ancillary conceptual plans pertaining 
to Tract 1 lot layout, common open space landscaping, streetscape rendering design, and tree preservation on Open Space 
Lot 27X-Block E are set forth in Exhibit “C”, Exhibit “D”, Exhibit “E”, and Exhibit “F” respectively, and are included 
attached hereto and incorporated herein, are hereby approved, as generally depicted (Exhibits “C”, “D”, “E” and “F” 
together herein referred to as the “Ancillary Conceptual Plans”) .   
 
Exhibit “B” shows only the change in base zoning district designation for Tract 2 from Industrial to MF-3 Multi-Family.  
Any future development proposed on Tract 2 shall require an amendment to this “PD-51” Ordinance.  At which time, a 
Concept Plan, PD Design Statement, and associated land use regulations shall be required for the entirety of Tract 2 and 
shall follow the application, review, and approval procedures as required by UDC, Section 2.10.09 -  PD, Planned 
Development Application and Review, as they may be amended.  

 
SECTION 4. 

LAND USE REGULATIONS 
Tract 1 (Single-Family) 
 
The Zoning and Land Use Regulations set forth in “Exhibit G” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes shall 
be adhered to in their entirety for the purposes of this PD-Planned Development zoning district on Tract 1 with base zoning 

                                             146



Ordinance No.  
Page 3 of 24 
 

 

designation of SF-4, Single Family Residential (Detached) on ±36.219 acres.  In the event of conflict between the provisions 
of “Exhibit G” and provisions of any other City zoning regulations, including without limitation the regulations governing 
SF-4, Single Family Residential (Detached) zoning district, Exhibit “G” shall control.    
 
That the zoning regulations and districts herein established have been adopted in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan 
for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals and the general welfare of the community. They have been designed, 
with respect to both present conditions and the conditions reasonably anticipated to exist in the foreseeable future; to lessen 
congestion in the streets; to provide adequate light and air; to prevent over-crowding of land; to avoid undue concentration 
of population; and to facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, drainage and surface water, parks 
and other commercial needs and development of the community. They have been made after a full and complete hearing 
with reasonable consideration among other things of the character of the district and its peculiar suitability for the particular 
uses and with a view of conserving the value of buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the 
community 
 
The Planned Development Concept Plan for Tract 1 (Exhibit “B”), the Ancillary Conceptual Plans (Exhibits “C”, D”, “E”, 
and “F”), and the Land Use Regulations (Exhibit “G”) shall control the use and development of Tract 1, and all building 
permits and development requests shall be in accordance with applicable City ordinances, the PD Concept Plan, Ancillary 
Conceptual Plans, and Land Use Regulations.  The PD Concept Plan, Ancillary Concept Plans and Land Use Regulations 
shall remain in effect as set forth herein unless amended by the City Council. 
 
If a change to the Concept Plan, and/or associated Ancillary Conceptual Plans, if any, is requested for Tract 1, the request 
shall be processed in accordance with the UDC Section 2.10.09 and development standards in effect at the time the change 
is requested for the proposed development and shall be subject to City Council approval. 
 
Tract 2 (Multi-Family) 
 
The Zoning and Land Use Regulations  set forth in “Exhibit G” shall be adhered to in their entirety for the purposes of this 
PD-Planned Development zoning district on Tract 2 with the base zoning designation MF-3, Multi-Family Residential on 
±13.579 acres, however the owner shall not be eligible to develop Tract 2 or to submit any subsequent Plat or Site Plan until 
a Concept Plan and a PD Design Statement have been approved using the PD, Planned Development Amendment Approval 
process.  Specifically, any proposed future development of Tract 2 shall be subject to a the Planned Development approval 
process as set forth in UDC, Section 2.10.09 to ensure a PD Concept Plan and a PD Design Statement have been prepared 
and Land Use Regulations sufficiently detailed for development are established to govern development on Tract 2, which 
must be in accordance with the concepts outlined in the Envision Corinth 2020 Comprehensive Plan Land Use and 
Development Strategies Mixed Use-TOD category.   Applications to amend this PD-51 Ordinance may be submitted for 
only Tract 1, only Tract 2, or for the entire Property.    
 

SECTION 5. 
PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS 

 
Any person, firm, or corporation who intentionally, knowingly or recklessly violates any provision of this Ordinance 

or the Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, shall be subject to a fine not to exceed the sum of five hundred dollars 
($500.00) for each offense, and each and every day any such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate 
offense, provided, however, that in all cases involving violation of any provision of this Ordinance or Code of Ordinances, 
as amended hereby, governing the fire safety, zoning, or public health and sanitation shall be subject to a fine not to exceed 
the sum of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense.  

 
SECTION 6. 

SEVERABILITY 
 

The provisions of the Ordinance are severable. However, in the event this Ordinance or any procedure provided in 
this Ordinance becomes unlawful, or is declared or determined by a judicial, administrative or legislative authority 

                                             147



Ordinance No.  
Page 4 of 24 
 

 

exercising its jurisdiction to be excessive, unenforceable, void, illegal or otherwise inapplicable, in while in part, the 
remaining and lawful provisions shall be of full force and effect and the City shall promptly promulgate new revised 
provisions in compliance with the authority’s decisions or enactment. 

 
                     SECTION 7. 

                             CUMULATIVE REPEALER 
 

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances and shall not repeal any of the provisions of such 
Ordinances except for those instances where there are direct conflicts with the provisions of this Ordinance. Ordinances, or 
parts thereof, in force at the time this Ordinance shall take effect and that are inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby 
repealed to the extent that they are inconsistent with this Ordinance.  Provided however, that any complaint, action, claim 
or lawsuit which has been initiated or has arisen under or pursuant to such other Ordinances on this date of adoption of this 
Ordinance shall continue to be governed by the provisions of such Ordinance and for that purpose the Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 8. 

SAVINGS 
 
 All rights and remedies of the City of Corinth, Texas are expressly saved as to any and all violations of the 
provisions of any other ordinance affecting zoning for the Property which have secured at the time of the effective date of 
this ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in 
court or not, under such ordinances same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 
disposition by the court. 
  

SECTION 9. 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This ordinance shall become effective after approval and publication as provided by law.  The City Secretary is directed to 
publish the caption and penalty of this ordinance two times. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF _______, 2020. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lana Wylie, City Secretary 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
Patricia Adams, City Attorney 
  

                                             148



Ordinance No.  
Page 5 of 24 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A”  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
Legal Description – Entire Tract 

Zoning Limits 
 
BEING 49.798 acres (2,169,219 square feet) of land in the J. P. Walton Survey, Abstract No. 1389, City of Corinth, Denton 
County, Texas; said 49.798 acres (2,169,219 square feet)  of land being all of that certain tract of land described in a Special 
Warranty Deed to Shady Grove Lot Venture, Ltd., as recorded in Instrument Number 2019-13008, Official Public Records, 
Denton County, Texas (O.P.R.D.C.T.) and being all of that certain tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to 
Shady Grove Lot Venture, Ltd. (hereinafter collectively referred to as Shady Grove Lot Venture tract), as recorded in 
Instrument Number 2019-13009, O.P.R.D.C.T. and being all of that certain tract of land described as Lot 1, Block A, 
Metroplex Cabinets Addition (hereinafter referred to as Lot 1), an addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, 
according to the plat recorded in Instrument Number 2011-30693, Plat Records, Denton County, Texas (P.R.D.C.T.), and 
being a portion of that certain tract of land described as Lot 1-R, Block A, North Central Texas College Addition No. 2 
(hereinafter referred to as Lot 1-R), an addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, according to the plat recorded 
in Instrument Number 2007-25053, P.R.D.C.T.; said 49.798 acres (2,169,219 square feet) of land being more particularly 
described, by metes and bounds, as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for the Northeast corner of said 
Shady Grove Lot Venture tract, same being the Southeast corner of that certain tract of land described as Lot 1, Block A, 
Cab Estates (hereinafter referred to as Cab Estates), an addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, according to 
the plat recorded in Instrument Number 2011-202, Plat Records, Denton County, Texas (P.R.D.C.T.), same also being the 
existing West right-of-way line of Shady Rest Lane (variable width right-of-way), as recorded in Instrument Number 2014-
112539, O.P.R.D.C.T.; 
 
THENCE South 02 degrees 44 minutes 00 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and the existing West right-of-way line of said Shady Rest Lane, a distance of 330.79 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod 
with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner;  
 
THENCE South 01 degree 59 minutes 16 seconds East, continue with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot 
Venture tract and the existing West right-of-way line of said Shady Rest Lane, a distance of 131.44 feet to a five-eighths 
inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the left, whose 
long chord bears South 06 degrees 16 minutes 10 seconds East, a distance of 80.64 feet; 
 
THENCE Southerly, continue with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract and the existing West 
right-of-way line of said Shady Rest Lane and with said curve to the left having a radius of 540.00 feet, through a central 
angle of 8 degrees 33 minutes 49 seconds, for an arc distance of 80.71 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap 
stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the right, whose long chord bears South 06 
degrees 53 minutes 11 seconds East, a distance of 61.37 feet; 
 
THENCE Southerly, continue with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract and the existing West 
right-of-way line of said Shady Rest Lane and with said curve to the right having a radius of 480.00 feet, through a central 
angle of 7 degrees 19 minutes 52 seconds, for an arc distance of 61.42 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap 
stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner; 
 
THENCE South 03 degrees 13 minutes 14 seconds East, continue with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot 
Venture tract and the existing West right-of-way line of said Shady Rest Lane, a distance of 163.33 feet to a five-eighths 
inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner, same being in the North line of that certain tract of 
land described in a Warranty Deed to Alonzo Dorris Cate and wife, Welna June Cate (hereinafter referred to as Cate tract), 
as recorded in Volume 435, Page 211, Deed Records, Denton County, Texas (D.R.D.C.T.); 
 

                                             149



Ordinance No.  
Page 6 of 24 
 

 

THENCE North 89 degrees 43 minutes 47 seconds West, departing the existing West right-of-way line of said Shady Rest 
Lane and with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract and said Cate tract a distance of 348.32 feet 
to a one-half inch iron rod found for the Southwest corner of said Tract 1, same being the Northwest corner of said Cate 
tract, same also being the East line of the remainder of said Ford tract; 
 
THENCE South 02 degrees 18 minutes 13 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and said Cate tract, a distance of 585.14 feet to a one-half inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "ARTHUR SURVEYING" 
found for the Southeast corner of the remainder of said Ford tract, same being the West line of said Cate tract, same also 
being the existing North right-of-way line of Walton Road (variable width right-of-way), as recorded in Volume 5244, Page 
411, Official Public Records, Denton County, Texas (O.P.R.D.C.T.); 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 50 minutes 35 seconds West, departing the West line of said Cate tract and with the common 
line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract and the existing North right-of-way line of said Walton Road, a distance 
of 480.38 feet to a one-half inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "BRITTIAN CRAWFORD" found for the Southwest 
corner of said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract, same being the Southeast corner of said Lot 1; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 50 minutes 35 seconds West with the common line between said Lot 1 and the existing North 
right-of-way line of said Walton Road, a distance of 494.92 feet to a one-half inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped 
“BRITTIAN CRAWFORD” found for the Southwest corner of said Lot 1, same being the Southeast corner of said Lot 1-
R; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 50 minutes 17 seconds West with the common line between said Lot 1-R and the existing 
North right-of-way line of said Walton Road, a distance of 579.09 feet to a one-half inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped 
“BRITTIAN CRAWFORD” found for the Southerly Southwest corner of said Lot 1-R, same being the Southeast corner of 
that certain tract of land described in a Warranty deed to Bennora Real Estate, LLC, (hereinafter referred to as Bennora 
tract) as recorded in Instrument Number 2015-50494, O.P.R.D.C.T.; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 02 minutes 04 seconds East, departing the existing North right-of-way line of said Walton 
Road, with the common line between said Lot 1-R and said Bennora tract, at a distance of 331.96 feet, pass a one-half inch 
iron rod found for the Northeast corner of said Benorra tract, and continue said course, crossing said Lot 1-R, a total distance 
of 529.80 feet; 
 
THENCE North 43 degrees 09 minutes 06 seconds East, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 35.84 feet; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 43 minutes 48 seconds East, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 134.52 feet to a five-
eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the left, 
whose long chord bears North 86 degrees 28 minutes 58 seconds East, a distance of 29.73 feet; 
 
THENCE Easterly, continue crossing said Lot 1-R and with said curve to the left having a radius of 225.00 feet, through a 
central angle of 7 degrees 34 minutes 31 seconds, for an arc distance of 29.75 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic 
cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 14 minutes 48 seconds West, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 784.17 feet to a 
five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner in the North line of said Lot 1-R, same being 
the South line of that certain tract of land described as Somerset Addition (hereinafter referred to as Somerset Addition), an 
addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, according to the plat recorded in Cabinet R, Page 45, P.R.D.C.T.;   
 
THENCE North 88 degrees 43 minutes 44 seconds East with the common line between said Lot 1-R and said Somerset 
Addition, a distance of 359.60 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for corner, same being the Northwest corner of said 
Shady Grove Lot Venture tract; 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 33 minutes 38 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 

                                             150



Ordinance No.  
Page 7 of 24 
 

 

and said Somerset Addition, a distance of 422.44 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for corner; 
THENCE North 89 degrees 31 minutes 22 seconds East, continue with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot 
Venture tract and said Somerset Addition, a distance of 107.59 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod found for the Southeast 
corner of said Somerset Addition, same being the Southwest corner of that certain tract of land described as Oaks of Corinth 
(hereinafter referred to as Oaks of Corinth), an addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, according to the plat 
recorded in Instrument Number 2006-122243, P.R.D.C.T.; 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and said Oaks of Corinth, a distance of 412.28 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" 
found for corner; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 45 minutes 48 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and said Oaks of Corinth, a distance of 29.15 feet to a one-half inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "ARTHUR 
SURVEYING" found for the Southeast corner of said Oaks of Corinth; 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 51 minutes 47 seconds East with the North line of said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract, a 
distance of 5.85 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for the Southwest corner of the aforesaid Cab Estates; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 47 minutes 09 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and said Cab Estates, a distance of 317.53 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING, and containing a calculated area of 49.798 
acres (2,169,219 square feet) of land. 

 
Legal Description – Tract 1 (Single-Family Residential (detached)) 

 

36. 219 ACRES. 
 

BEING 36.219 acres (1,577,736 square feet) of land in the J. P. Walton Survey, Abstract No. 1389, City of Corinth, Denton 
County, Texas; said 36.219 acres (1,577,736 square feet) of land being all of that certain tract of land described in a Special 
Warranty Deed to Shady Grove Lot Venture, Ltd., as recorded in Instrument Number 2019-13008, Official Public Records, 
Denton County, Texas (O.P.R.D.C.T.) and being all of that certain tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to 
Shady Grove Lot Venture, Ltd. (hereinafter collectively referred to as Shady Grove Lot Venture tract), as recorded in 
Instrument Number 2019-13009, O.P.R.D.C.T. and being a portion of that certain tract of land described as Lot 1, Block A, 
Metroplex Cabinets Addition (hereinafter referred to as Lot 1), an addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, 
according to the plat recorded in Instrument Number 2011-30693, Plat Records, Denton County, Texas (P.R.D.C.T.), and 
being a portion of that certain tract of land described as Lot 1-R, Block A, North Central Texas College Addition No. 2 
(hereinafter referred to as Lot 1-R), an addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, according to the plat recorded 
in Instrument Number 2007-25053, P.R.D.C.T.; said 36.219 acres (1,577,736 square feet) of land being more particularly 
described, by metes and bounds, as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for the Northeast corner of said 
Shady Grove Lot Venture tract, same being the Southeast corner of that certain tract of land described as Lot 1, Block A, 
Cab Estates (hereinafter referred to as Cab Estates), an addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, according to 
the plat recorded in Instrument Number 2011-202, Plat Records, Denton County, Texas (P.R.D.C.T.), same also being the 
existing West right-of-way line of Shady Rest Lane (variable width right-of-way), as recorded in Instrument Number 2014-
112539, O.P.R.D.C.T.; 
 

THENCE South 02 degrees 44 minutes 00 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and the existing West right-of-way line of said Shady Rest Lane, a distance of 330.79 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod 
with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner;  
 

THENCE South 01 degree 59 minutes 16 seconds East, continue with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot 
Venture tract and the existing West right-of-way line of said Shady Rest Lane, a distance of 131.44 feet to a five-eighths 
inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the left, whose 
long chord bears South 06 degrees 16 minutes 10 seconds East, a distance of 80.64 feet; 

                                             151



Ordinance No.  
Page 8 of 24 
 

 

THENCE Southerly, continue with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract and the existing West 
right-of-way line of said Shady Rest Lane and with said curve to the left having a radius of 540.00 feet, through a central 
angle of 8 degrees 33 minutes 49 seconds, for an arc distance of 80.71 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap 
stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the right, whose long chord bears South 06 
degrees 53 minutes 11 seconds East, a distance of 61.37 feet; 
 
THENCE Southerly, continue with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract and the existing West 
right-of-way line of said Shady Rest Lane and with said curve to the right having a radius of 480.00 feet, through a central 
angle of 7 degrees 19 minutes 52 seconds, for an arc distance of 61.42 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap 
stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner; 
 
THENCE South 03 degrees 13 minutes 14 seconds East, continue with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot 
Venture tract and the existing West right-of-way line of said Shady Rest Lane, a distance of 163.33 feet to a five-eighths 
inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner, same being in the North line of that certain tract of 
land described in a Warranty Deed to Alonzo Dorris Cate and wife, Welna June Cate (hereinafter referred to as Cate tract), 
as recorded in Volume 435, Page 211, Deed Records, Denton County, Texas (D.R.D.C.T.); 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 43 minutes 47 seconds West, departing the existing West right-of-way line of said Shady Rest 
Lane and with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract and said Cate tract a distance of 348.32 feet 
to a one-half inch iron rod found for the Southwest corner of said Tract 1, same being the Northwest corner of said Cate 
tract, same also being the East line of the remainder of said Ford tract; 
 
THENCE South 02 degrees 18 minutes 13 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and said Cate tract, a distance of 585.14 feet to a one-half inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "ARTHUR SURVEYING" 
found for the Southeast corner of the remainder of said Ford tract, same being the West line of said Cate tract, same also 
being the existing North right-of-way line of Walton Road (variable width right-of-way), as recorded in Volume 5244, Page 
411, Official Public Records, Denton County, Texas (O.P.R.D.C.T.); 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 50 minutes 35 seconds West, departing the West line of said Cate tract and with the common 
line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract and the existing North right-of-way line of said Walton Road, a distance 
of 28.40 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 16 minutes 13 seconds East, departing the existing North right-of-way line of said Walton 
Road, crossing said Lot 1, a distance of 588.35 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” 
set for corner; 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 43 minutes 47 seconds West, continue crossing said Lot 1, pass at a distance of 493.58 feet, 
the West line of said Lot 1, same being the East line of said Lot 1-R, continue with said course crossing said Lot 1-R for a 
total distance of 583.35 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner, same being 
the beginning of a curve to the left, whose long chord bears South 77 degrees 55 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 
96.19 feet; 
 
THENCE Westerly, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, with said curve to the left having a radius of 225.00 feet, through a 
central angle of 24 degrees 41 minutes 06 seconds, for an arc distance of 96.94 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with 
plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner; 
 
THENCE South 65 degrees 35 minutes 08 seconds West, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 106.42 feet to a 
five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner for the beginning of a curve to the right, 
whose long chord bears South 77 degrees 55 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 117.56 feet; 
 
THENCE Westerly, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, with said curve to the right having a radius of 275.00 feet, through a 
central angle of 24 degrees 41 minutes 06 seconds, for an arc distance of 118.48 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with 

                                             152



Ordinance No.  
Page 9 of 24 
 

 

plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner; 
THENCE North 89 degrees 43 minutes 47 seconds West, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 158.81 feet to a 
five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 02 minutes 04 seconds East, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 23.73 feet to a five-
eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner;  
 
THENCE North 43 degrees 09 minutes 06 seconds East, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 35.84 feet to a five-
eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner;   
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 43 minutes 48 seconds East, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 134.52 feet to a five-
eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the left, 
whose long chord bears North 86 degrees 28 minutes 58 seconds East, a distance of 29.73 feet; 
 
THENCE Easterly, continue crossing said Lot 1-R and with said curve to the left having a radius of 225.00 feet, through a 
central angle of 7 degrees 34 minutes 31 seconds, for an arc distance of 29.75 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic 
cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 14 minutes 48 seconds West, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 784.17 feet to a 
five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner in the North line of said Lot 1-R, same being 
the South line of that certain tract of land described as Somerset Addition (hereinafter referred to as Somerset Addition), an 
addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, according to the plat recorded in Cabinet R, Page 45, P.R.D.C.T.;   
 
THENCE North 88 degrees 43 minutes 44 seconds East with the common line between said Lot 1-R and said Somerset 
Addition, a distance of 359.60 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for corner, same being the Northwest corner of said 
Shady Grove Lot Venture tract; 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 33 minutes 38 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and said Somerset Addition, a distance of 422.44 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for corner; 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 31 minutes 22 seconds East, continue with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot 
Venture tract and said Somerset Addition, a distance of 107.59 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod found for the Southeast 
corner of said Somerset Addition, same being the Southwest corner of that certain tract of land described as Oaks of Corinth 
(hereinafter referred to as Oaks of Corinth), an addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, according to the plat 
recorded in Instrument Number 2006-122243, P.R.D.C.T.; 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and said Oaks of Corinth, a distance of 412.28 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" 
found for corner; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 45 minutes 48 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and said Oaks of Corinth, a distance of 29.15 feet to a one-half inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "ARTHUR 
SURVEYING" found for the Southeast corner of said Oaks of Corinth; 
 
THENCE North 89 degrees 51 minutes 47 seconds East with the North line of said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract, a 
distance of 5.85 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for the Southwest corner of the aforesaid Cab Estates; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 47 minutes 09 seconds East with the common line between said Shady Grove Lot Venture tract 
and said Cab Estates, a distance of 317.53 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING, and containing a calculated area of 36.219 
acres (1,577,736 square feet) of land. 
  
  

                                             153



Ordinance No.  
Page 10 of 24 
 

 

Legal Description – Tract 2 (Multi-Family Residential) 
 
13.579 ACRES. 
 
BEING 13.579 acres (591,482 square feet) of land in the J. P. Walton Survey, Abstract No. 1389, City of Corinth, Denton 
County, Texas; said 13.579 acres (591,482 square feet) of land being a portion of that certain tract of land described as Lot 
1, Block A, Metroplex Cabinets Addition (hereinafter referred to as Lot 1), an addition to the City of Corinth, Denton 
County, Texas, according to the plat recorded in Instrument Number 2011-30693, Plat Records, Denton County, Texas 
(P.R.D.C.T.), and being a portion of that certain tract of land described as Lot 1-R, Block A, North Central Texas College 
Addition No. 2 (hereinafter referred to as Lot 1-R), an addition to the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas, according to 
the plat recorded in Instrument Number 2007-25053, P.R.D.C.T.; said 13.579 acres (591,482 square feet) of land being 
more particularly described, by metes and bounds, as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a one-half inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “BRITTIAN CRAWFORD” found for the Southerly 
Southeast corner of said Lot 1-R, same being the existing North right-of-way line of Walton Road (variable width right-of-
way), as recorded in Instrument Number 2007-25053, Official Public Records, Denton County, Texas (O.P.R.D.C.T.), same 
also being the Southeast corner of that certain tract of land described in a deed to Bennora Real Estate, LLC (hereinafter 
referred as Bennora Real Estate tract), as recorded in Instrument Number 2016-50494, O.P.R.D.C.T.; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 02 minutes 04 seconds East, departing the existing North right-of-way line of Walton Road, 
with the common line between said Lot 1-R and said Bennora Real Estate tract, pass at a distance of 331.96 feet, a one-half 
inch iron rod found for the Northeast corner of said Bennora Real Estate tract, same being the inner-ell corner of said Lot 
1-R and continue with said course, crossing said Lot 1-R for a total distance of 506.07 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod 
with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner;  
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 43 minutes 47 seconds East, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 158.81 feet to a five-
eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the left, 
whose long chord bears North 77 degrees 55 minutes 41 seconds East, a distance of 117.56 feet; 
 
THENCE Easterly, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, with said curve to the left having a radius of 275.00 feet, through a 
central angle of 24 degrees 41 minutes 06 seconds, for an arc distance of 118.48 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with 
plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner; 
 
THENCE North 65 degrees 35 minutes 08 seconds East, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, a distance of 106.42 feet to a five-
eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner for the beginning of a curve to the right, whose 
long chord bears North 77 degrees 55 minutes 41 seconds East, a distance of 96.19 feet; 
 
THENCE Easterly, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, with said curve to the right having a radius of 225.00 feet, through a 
central angle of 24 degrees 41 minutes 06 seconds, for an arc distance of 96.94 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with 
plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner; 
 
THENCE South 89degrees 43minutes 47seconds East, continue crossing said Lot 1-R, pass at a distance of 89.76 feet, the 
East line of said Lot 1-R, same being the West line of said Lot 1, continue with said course, crossing said Lot 1 for a total 
distance of 583.35 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner; 
 
THENCE South 00 degrees 16 minutes 13 seconds West, continue crossing said Lot 1, a distance of 588.35 feet to a five-
eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838” set for corner, same being the South line of said Lot 1, same 
being the existing North right-of-way line of said Walton Road; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 50 minutes 35 seconds West with the common line between said Lot 1 and the existing North 
right-of-way line of said Walton Road, a distance of 466.52 feet to a one-half inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped 
“BRITTIAN CRAWFORD” found for corner, same being the Southwest corner of said Lot 1, same being the Southeast 

                                             154



Ordinance No.  
Page 11 of 24 
 

 

corner of said Lot 1-R; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 50 minutes 17 seconds West with the common line between said Lot 1-R and the existing 
North right-of-way line of said Walton Road, a distance of 478.99 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING, and containing a 
calculated area of 13.579 acres (591,482 square feet) of land. 
  
 
 

 
 
  

                                             155



Ordinance No.  
Page 12 of 24 
 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 
ZONING EXHIBIT (TRACTS 1 AND 2) 

& CONCEPT PLAN (TRACT 1) 

 
 

                                             156



Ordinance No.  
Page 13 of 24 
 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 
LOT LAYOUT AND SPECIFICATIONS (TRACT 1) 

 

 

                                             157



Ordinance No.  
Page 14 of 24 
 

 

EXHIBIT “D” 
COMMON OPEN SPACE LANDSCAPING AND TRAILS (TRACT 1)(1 of 2 sheets)

 

                                             158



Ordinance No.  
Page 15 of 24 
 

 

EXHIBIT “D” 
COMMON OPEN SPACE LANDSCAPING AND TRAILS (TRACT 1) 

(2 of 2 sheets) 

 
  

                                             159



Ordinance No.  
Page 16 of 24 
 

 

 
EXHIBIT “E” 

STREETSCAPE RENDERING ON MEWS/PATIO HOME LOTS (TRACT 1) 

 

                                             160



Ordinance No.  
Page 17 of 24 
 

 

EXHIBIT “F” 
TREE PRESERVATION MEWS LOT – (LOT 27X-BLOCK E- TRACT 1)

 

                                             161



Ordinance No.  
Page 18 of 24 
 

 

EXHIBIT “G” 
LAND USE REGULATIONS 

 
 SECTION 1: BASE DISTRICTS 
 
A. Tract 1 (Single-Family Residential (detached)) 
 

1. Purpose 
 

The regulations set forth in this Exhibit “G” provide development standards for single family residential 
designations for Tract 1 within the Walton Ridge Redesign Planned Development District No. 51 (“PD-
51”).  The boundaries of PD-51 (Tract 1) are identified by metes and bounds on the Legal Description, 
Exhibit “A” to this Ordinance and the Property shall be developed in accordance with these regulations and 
the PD Concept Plan as depicted on Exhibit “B” and associated Ancillary Concept Plans as depicted in 
Exhibits “C, D, E, and F” to this Ordinance. A use that is not expressly authorized herein is expressly 
prohibited in this PD-51.  
 

2. Base District 
 

In this PD-51, the “SF-4” Single Family Residential District (Detached) regulations of the Corinth Unified 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 13-05-02-08, as amended, shall apply to Tract 1 except as modified 
herein.  If a change to the Concept Plan, and/or associated Ancillary Concept Plans is requested, the request 
shall be processed in accordance with the development standards in effect at the time the change is requested 
for the proposed development. 

 
B. Tract 2 (Multi-Family Residential) 
 

1. Purpose 
 

The regulations set forth in this Exhibit “G” are to provide only a basis for a “zoning map” change from an 
Industrial zoning district to a base zoning district of MF-3 Multi-Family Residential on Tract 2 within the 
Walton Ridge Redesign PD-51.  The boundaries of PD-51(Tract 2) are identified by metes and bounds on 
the Legal Description, Exhibit “A” to this Ordinance. It shall be expressly known that Tract 2 shall not be 
developed without first being subject to a PD Planned Development Amendment process per UDC Section 
2.10.09 in order to establish a PD Concept Plan, a PD Design Statement, and Land Use Regulations 
sufficiently detailed for development. 
 

2. Base District 
 

In this PD-51 (Tract 2), the “MF-3” Multi-Family Residential District regulations of the Corinth Unified 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 13-05-02-08 shall only apply to the extent as described herein.  The 
designation of the base district shall be to affect a zoning map change only (from Industrial to PD-51 with 
a base zoning district MF-3 Multi-Family) and to establish basic development regulations.  Any future 
development of Tract 2 shall require a PD, Planned Development Amendment Approval to establish a 
Concept Plan, a PD Design Statement, and Land Use Regulations sufficiently detailed for development.  

 
  

                                             162



Ordinance No.  
Page 19 of 24 
 

 

SECTION 2: USES AND AREA REGULATIONS 
 
A. Tract 1 (Single-Family Residential (detached)) 
 

1. Purpose 
    

The PD-51 district (Tract 1) is intended to provide for a quality development of a residential community 
taking advantage of the location and infill qualities and foster the concepts outlined in Envision Corinth 
20240 Comprehensive Plan promoting new urbanist design through Mixed Residential and Mixed Use – 
Transit Oriented Development (TOD) design concepts. 

 

2. Permitted Uses and Use Regulations 
 

In the PD-51 district (Tract 1), no building or land shall be used and no building shall be hereafter erected, 
reconstructed, enlarged or converted, unless permitted by the SF-4 Single Family Residential District 
(detached) regulations of the Unified Development Code or  as otherwise permitted by this PD Ordinance.  
The Permitted Uses in the SF-4 Single Family Residential District (Detached) as listed in Subsection 
2.07.03 of the Unified Development Code shall be permitted uses in the PD-51 district (Tract 1). 

 

3. Dimensional Regulations 
 

The Dimensional Regulations described in Section 2.08.04 of the Unified Development Code, Ordinance 
No. 13-05-02-08, for the base zoning district SF-4 Single Family Residential (Detached) shall apply within 
Tract 1, except as “modified” below: 
 

General and Lot Specific Dimensional Requirements 
  

SF-4 (Base 
Zoning) 

Walton Ridge Redesign Planned Development  
Modified Standards 

Patio Homes/ 
Mews Lots 

Traditional Single-Family Lots* 

Lot Sizes  40’ 50’s 60’s 80’s 

Minimum Lot Width 70’ at building 
line 

40’  50’ 60’ 80’* 
*All lots backing to 
adjacent existing SF 
subdivision 

Minimum Lot Depth 100’  100’  100’ 100’ 115’ 

Minimum Lot Area 7,500 SF 4,000 SF  5,500 SF 6,600 SF 9,500 SF 

Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit 
(SF)/ Minimum Floor Area 

1,500 SF 1,500 SF  1,500 SF 1,800 SF 2,000 SF 

Minimum Front Yard Setback 25’ 5’ minimum with 
Mews Frontage 

10’ Minimum with 
Street Frontage  

 
20’ for J-swing garages  

25’ for front entry garages  

Minimum Side Yard Setback 7.5’ 5’ 5’ 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback 20’ 20’ minimum (for 
driveways)  

10’ except: 
15’ when backing up to an adjacent thoroughfare. 
20’ when backing up to an existing single-family 

neighborhood 
Maximum Height 35’ / 2.5 Stories 36’ / 2.5 Stories  36’ / 2.5 Stories  

Maximum Building Coverage 30% 70%  70%  

Garage Orientation  20’ 
from rear property 

line  

All front facing garages must be even with the front 
building façade or recessed from the front building 

façade. 

                                             163



Ordinance No.  
Page 20 of 24 
 

 

4.  Development Standards 
 

The Development Standards described in Section 2.04.04 of the Unified Development Code, Ordinance 
No. 13-05-02-08, for the SF-4 Single Family (detached) District and shall apply to all development within 
Tract 1, except as further described and/or modified below: 

 
See the following sections of the City of Corinth Unified Development Code (“UDC”) for development 
standards: 

 
Walton Ridge Redesign Planned Development Requirements  

and Modified Standards 
 

a. UDC Section 2.09.01 Landscape Regulations shall apply, except that a modification to specifically 
permit the required landscaping planting material to be located within the right-of-way as 
shown on Exhibit “E”, and may be accounted for in part, through the replacement requirements of 
Protected Trees removed as part of the development of Tract 1 for the portion of the tract designed 
with 40’ lot widths, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 

 1. Replacement tree caliper inches as required under UDC Section 2.09.02 may be used to meet 
the planting requirements (shade trees only) within the right-of-way as shown on Exhibit 
“E”. 

 
b. UDC Section 2.09.01.2.B.(a) (1) Landscaping Regulations for Attached and Detached Single 

Family Developments shall apply, except that, a modification to specifically permit the 
landscaping tree planting calculations as required for the 40’ lots is hereby granted, subject to 
the following conditions:    

 1. Tree caliper inches required by this section (Section 2.09.01.2.B.(a)(1)) for front yard tree 
plantings, shall permit required trees to be planted on the Mews Open Space Lots; 27X-Block E 
and Lot 27X-Block F and not within the front yards of 40’ lots.  Required trees may also be 
satisfied by planting in the rear yard.  A maximum of one (1) shade tree in the rear yard shall be 
counted. 

 2. Tree caliper inches as required by Section 2.09.01.2.B.(a) (1) may be satisfied by the planting of 
replacement trees (shade trees only) as required under UDC Section 2.09.02. Alternative 
Compliance – Tree Preservation-Tree Preservation, and thereby reducing the required caliper 
inches for replacement trees in direct proportion to tree caliper inches required in Landscaping 
Requirements (Section 2.09.01.2.B.(a) (1)) for the portion of the tract designated with 40’ lot 
widths.  This provision will be reviewed and considered at the time of Alternative Compliance-
Tree Preservation Application as presented in a Tree Protection Plan detailing proposed 
replacement of protected trees removed on site. 

3. At a minimum, the location of shade trees within Lots 27X Blocks E and F shall include a linear 
placement 50 feet on center to create a continuous formal canopy running parallel to the required 
sidewalks thereby creating a more formal park green.     
 

c. UDC Section 2.09.01.2.B.(b) Landscaping Regulations for Attached and Detached Single 
Family Developments shall apply, except that a modification to specifically permit the location of 
trees to be planted within the parkway, the area between the back of curb and the right-of-
way/property based on the alternative Streetscape Design presented in Exhibit “E”, is hereby granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 

 1. Shall be planted as shown on Exhibit “E”, within bulb-out section as well as between the 
sidewalk and curb (parkway area). 

2. Trees planted within the parkway shall be preserved, maintained and replaced in kind by the 
Homeowners’ Association in the event of removal, destruction, decline, or death as provided for 

                                             164



Ordinance No.  
Page 21 of 24 
 

 

in the restrictive covenants. The detail of such maintenance obligation shall be set forth in the 
restrictive covenants and shall be recorded prior to recording of the Final Plat. 

3. Trees planted in right-of-way may be counted towards required replacement trees to mitigate 
Protected Tree removal on Tract 1 as considered at the time of Alternative Compliance-Tree 
Preservation Application based on a Tree Protection Plan showing proposed replacement 
locations. 
 

 
d. UDC Section 2.09.02 Tree Preservation Regulations shall apply, except that a modification to 

specifically exclude Protected Trees from replacement calculations when located within the 
Street Right-of-Way, Building Pads (including 5’ from the edge of the building pad), Utility 
Easements, or Driveways, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

 1. Shall apply to Tract 1 as delineated on Exhibit “B”.  
2. The existing grove of Protected Trees located within the Mews Lots Open Space Lot 27X-Block 

E (and as shown in greater detail on Exhibits “E” and “F”) shall be preserved and shall be 
identified in the Tree Survey and Protection Plan as part of an Alternative Compliance 
Application at or prior to time of Preliminary Plat application.   Protected Trees preserved on 
site shall be maintained and replaced in kind by the Homeowners’ Association in the event of 
removal, destruction, decline, or death as provided for in the restrictive covenants. The detail of 
such maintenance obligation shall be set forth in the restrictive covenants and shall be recorded 
prior to recording of the Final Plat. 
 

e. UDC Section 3.05.13 Street Design Criteria shall apply, except that a modification to specifically 
permit new urbanist street design standards to include on-street parallel parking/bulb-outs, shade 
trees, and other amenities including benches and street lighting as represented on Exhibit “E”, is 
hereby granted, subject to the following: 
 

 Conditions: 
1. Street design shall follow the concept and cross-section shown in Exhibit “E” and be permitted 

within the portion of Tract 1 serving the Patio Homes/Mews Lots.   
2. Consists of various street sections: 

a. 30-foot right-of-way with a 24-foot Alley section 
b. 50-foot right-of-way with  

i. 31-foot back-to-back pavement street section – on-street parking allowed 
i. 25-foot back-to-back pavement street section – no parking 

ii. 33-foot back-to-back pavement street section – parallel parking on one side 
iii. 41-foot back-to-back pavement street section – parallel parking on both sides 

 
 

f. UDC Section 2.09.04 Building Façade Material Standards shall apply, except that all garages 
shall incorporate a minimum of two (2) of the following architectural features as follows: 

 1. Sconce lighting 
2. Decorative banding or molding 
3. Decorative overhangs above garage doors 
4. Eyebrow soldier course over garage doors 
5. Decorative details above garage 
6. Decorative brackets on garage doors (“carriage-style”) 
7. Columns flanking garage doors 

 
 

                                             165



Ordinance No.  
Page 22 of 24 
 

 

g. UDC Section 4.02 Fence and Screening Regulations shall apply, except as follows, and is hereby 
granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

 1. Developer shall provide an 8-foot spruce fence with masonry columns along the portions of the 
Property that abut Shady Rest Lane. Where there is a detention pond, the fencing will be tubular 
steel with masonry columns.  

2. Developer shall provide a 6-foot spruce fence with masonry columns along the portions of the 
development that abut Walton Road. Where there is a detention pond, the fencing will be tubular 
steel with masonry columns.  

3. Developer shall install an 8-foot spruce fence along the residential backyards of the northern 
boundary of Block A (Lots 2-8 and 10-18) and eastern boundary of Block K (lots 1-9) prior to 
issuance of 1st building permit, by phase, if constructed in phases.  Reference Exhibit “B”. 

4. Fencing as noted in items 1-2 above shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowners’ 
Association. 

5. Other property boundaries will have spruce fencing as installed by the builders.  
 
h. UDC Section 3.05.10 Park and Trail Dedications for Residentially Zoned Property shall apply, 

and the requirements are hereby satisfied, subject to the following conditions: 
 

 1. Open Space Lots 27X-Block E and 27X-Block F along the Mews Lots shall be reserved and 
deeded as “common open space” for the enjoyment of the Walton Ridge neighborhood and noted 
as such in the restrictive covenants. 

2. All common open space lots shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowners’ Association. 
3. Trails, sidewalks, and amenities shall be located within the common open space shall be 

maintained and replaced in kind in the event to removal, disrepair, and/or destruction as provided 
for the restrictive covenants.  The detail of such ownership and maintenance obligation shall be 
set forth in the covenants and shall be recorded prior to recording of the Final Plat. 

4. All trails and sidewalks shall be provided a public pedestrian access easement. 
5. In the event that Tract 1 is needing to develop in two phases and/or Phase 2 is eliminated, Park 

and Trail dedication requirements shall be reevaluated for Phase 1 as a standalone project at time 
of preliminary plat and may require the addition fees-in-lieu-of land dedication to satisfy UDC 
requirements.  

6. Required landscape plantings and locations of required amenities will be further defined at time 
of Landscape Plan submission. 

 
5. Amenities 
 

1. The following amenities shall be required in the common open space areas:  
 a. All common open space sidewalks will be a minimum width of 5-feet, except that this width 

may be reduced to 4-feet for sidewalks required along the 40’ lots that front directly onto Mews 
Open Space Lots (Lot 27X-Block E and 27X-Block F) in order to provide interconnectivity 
along the front of the dwellings and out to the adjoining public street and to the main trail located 
within the common open space lots and where necessary based on the alternative street design 
shown on Exhibit “E”.  A public pedestrian access easement shall be provided in these locations. 
 

b. The trail along Shady Rest Lane will be a minimum width of 10-feet and shall be a part of the 
City of Corinth’s Master Trail Plan.  Trails shall be provided in public access easements when 
outside of the public right-of-way. Trails shall be maintained and replaced in kind by the 
Homeowners’ Association as shall be provided for in the restrictive covenants. The detail of 
such maintenance obligation shall be set forth in the restrictive covenants and shall be recorded 
prior to recording of the Final Plat. 
 

                                             166



Ordinance No.  
Page 23 of 24 
 

 

c. The trail connecting Shady Rest to Walton Ridge will be 6-feet in width and travel through the 
single family (Tract 1) and multifamily (Tract 2).  Exact location of trail connection through the 
multifamily tract will be determined at the time of the multi-family concept plan PD 
amendment.  

d. Pocket parks (Mews Lots) and linear green space lots shall be incorporated throughout the 
property and shall include amenities including but not limited to benches, picnic tables, and dog 
waste baskets.  Pocket parks (Mews Lots) and amenities shall be owned and maintained by the 
Homeowners’ Association for the property.  

e. 3” tree plantings at 50-feet on center will be planted along Walton Drive and Shady Rest.  
 

2. Common lots will have the following amenities to be owned and maintained by the 
Homeowners’ Association as shall be provided for in the restrictive covenants:  

 a. Lot 9X Block A and Block K – Tubular steel fencing with masonry columns shall be installed 
along the detention pond. A 5-foot sidewalk and sod shall also be installed along the interior 
right-of-way.  Park benches (a minimum of two benches), dog waste baskets, and picnic tables 
shall also be incorporated along the trails.   

b. Lot 19X Block A. - 10-foot trails with tubular steel fencing with masonry columns along the 
eastern boundaries. Park benches (a minimum of 2 benches), dog waste baskets, and picnic 
tables shall also be incorporated along the trail. Sod will also be installed.   

c. Shady Rest Linear Open Space Lot 10X-Block B - A 10-foot-wide trail shall be provided 
with sod.  In addition, an 8-foot spruce fence with masonry columns shall be provided along the 
residential backyards and tubular steel fencing with masonry columns along the section not 
backing up to lots.  Park benches (a minimum of 2 benches) and dog waste baskets shall be 
incorporated. 

d. Mews Open Space Lots (27X – Block E and 27X - Block F) – 6-foot-wide meandering trails 
with park benches and dog waste baskets and picnic tables shall be incorporated. Sod shall also 
be installed.   

e. Walton Ridge Linear Open Space Lot 7X-Block J and Open Space Lot 7X - Block H - 6-
foot spruce fence with masonry columns shall be installed along the residential backyards.  A 
5-foot sidewalk and sod will shall be installed along the right-of-way or within a public 
pedestrian access easement (exact location will be determined at time of Preliminary Plat) along 
Walton Drive and as generally shown on Exhibit “D”. 

 
 6.  Phasing 

 
Tract 1 may be completed in two phases.  While at the time of this PD-51 rezoning it is contemplated that 
Tract 1 will be platted and constructed within a single phase, it is recognized that due to timing constraints, 
a second phase may be necessary as shown on Exhibit “C”.  If a second phase (Phase 2) on Tract 1 is 
determined at the time of preliminary platting stage, Phase 1 shall be designed and constructed as a 
standalone phase and shall be subject to the conditions listed in Development Regulations above addressing 
Park and Trail Land Dedication.     
 

B. Tract 2 (Multi-Family Residential) 
 

1. Purpose 
 
The PD-51 district (Tract 2) is intended to serve future Multi-Family development though the designation 
of MF-3 Multi-Family base zoning district with the intent of fostering the concepts outlined in Envision 
Corinth 2040 Comprehensive Plan promoting new urbanist design through Mixed Use – Transit Oriented 
Development (TOD) design concepts. 

 
2. Permitted Uses and Use Regulations 

                                             167



Ordinance No.  
Page 24 of 24 
 

 

 
In the PD-51 district (Tract 2), no building or land shall be used and no building shall be hereafter erected, 
reconstructed, enlarged or converted, unless expressly approved by as part of a PD, Planned Development 
Amendment Approval process (amending this Ordinance) and which shall govern future development on 
Tract 2 only. 

 
The Permitted Uses in the MF-3 Multi-Family Residential as listed in Subsection 2.07.03 of the Unified 
Development Code shall be permitted uses in the PD-51 district (Tract 2) only and may be approved at the 
time of a PD, Planned Development Amendment Approval process governing future development on this 
Property. 
 
At the time of PD, Planned Development Application Amendment for Tract 2, the PD Concept and PD 
Design Statement shall specifically define Permitted Use and Use Regulations governing the development 
and design of Mixed Use-TOD oriented multi-family structures, formal open spaces/greens, and more form 
based design standards for development along streetscape, and any additional nonresidential uses.   

3. Dimensional Regulations  
 
Preliminary development regulations for Tract 2 have been identified in Section 2.B.4. below and will be 
further defined at the time of a PD, Planned Development Application Amendment for Tract 2.   
 

4. Development Standards 
 

The Development Standards described in Section 2.04.04 of the Unified Development Code, Ordinance 
No. 13-05-02-08, for the MF-3 Multi-Family District and shall apply only to the extent that the designation 
of the base zoning district shows that multi-family uses are intended for development at a future within 
Tract 2, subject to design, review, and approval as provided below: 

 
a. UDC Section 2.10.09 Planned Development Application and Review shall apply except that, a 

modification to specifically permit Tract 2 to be a component of this PD-51 and shown with a 
base zoning district MF-3 (without a PD Concept Plan, PD Design Statement, or associated 
Land Use Regulations), is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

 a. Any future development proposed on Tract 2 (Exhibit “B”) shall be subject to: (i) a Planned 
Development Amendment Approval Process, (ii) detailed PD Concept Plan, (iii) PD Design 
Statement, and (iv) additional Design Development Standards and Use Regulations (e.g., non-
residential/commercial uses located on ground floor) that are in keeping with the “Mixed Use -
TOD” concepts as outlined in the Envision Corinth Comprehensive Plan (adopted July 2020). 

b. Maximum density of 45 Dwelling Units per acre. 
c. Minimum Setbacks: 5-feet for front, side and rear yards. 
d. Maximum building height of 75 feet and 4 stories, though maximum may be exceeded for 

unoccupied architectural features. 
e. Landscaping and formal open space/plaza design standards shall be determined at the time of 

PD Amendment and shall at a minimum reflect the design principles of new urbanism relative 
to parking lot location, screening, location, streetscape design and pedestrian amenities. 

f. Screening on Tract 2 adjacent to Tract 1, Single-Family will not be required. 
g. Parking shall be provided as one space per bedroom, plus 0.1 space per unit for visitor parking 

and leasing.  Parking may be accommodated through the combination design concepts of on-
street and off-street parking areas within the tract. 

h. Garden style apartments are prohibited.  
 

                                             168



EXHIBIT “B” 

ZONING EXHIBIT (TRACTS 1 AND 2) 

& CONCEPT PLAN (TRACT 1) 

 

 

                                             169



EXHIBIT “C” 

LOT LAYOUT AND SPECIFICATIONS (TRACT 1) 

 

 

 

                                             170



EXHIBIT “D” 

COMMON OPEN SPACE LANDSCAPING AND TRAILS (TRACT 1) 

(1 of 2 sheets) 

 

                                             171



EXHIBIT “D” 

COMMON OPEN SPACE LANDSCAPING AND TRAILS (TRACT 1) 

(2 of 2 sheets) 

 

  

                                             172



 

EXHIBIT “E” 

STREETSCAPE RENDERING ON MEWS/PATIO HOME LOTS (TRACT 1) 

 

 

 

                                             173



EXHIBIT “F” 

TREE PRESERVATION MEWS LOT – (LOT 27X-BLOCK E - TRACT 1) 

 

 

                                             174


	Agenda
	AI 2150 Contract for Architectural Services Between the City of Corinth and TBG Partners
	       ATT_TBG Presentation
	AI 2162 Interlocal Agreement with Denton County Concerning Participation in Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2
	AI 2097 October 22, 2020, Workshop Session Minutes
	       ATT_October 22, 2020 - Workshop Session Minutes
	AI 2098 October 22, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
	       ATT_October 22, 2020 - Regular Session Minutes
	AI 2156 November 12, 2020 Special Session Minutes
	       ATT_November 12, 2020 Special Session Minutes
	AI 2157 November 17, 2020 Special Session Minutes
	       ATT_November 17, 2020 - Special Session Minutes
	AI 2158 November 19, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes
	       ATT_November 19, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes
	AI 2159 November 19, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
	       ATT_November 19, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
	AI 2160 December 3, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes
	       ATT_November 3, 2020 Workshop Session Minutes
	AI 2161 December 3, 2020 Regular Session Minutes
	       ATT_December 3, 2020, Regular Session Minutes
	AI 2145 Dark Fiber Lease to Public Works/Fire Station 2
	       ATT_CORINTH ZAYO MSA
	       ATT_ZAYO SERVICE ORDER
	AI 2144 Solid Waste Rate 
	       ATT_CWD Ordinance 
	AI 2148 Interlocal Agreement with Denton County Concerning Participation in Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2
	AI 2155 Amendment to the Ordinance Creating Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2
	AI 2149 Resolution of the City Council Consenting to Legislation Creating Agora Municipal Management District No. 1
	       ATT_Resolution Supporting Agora MMD
	AI 2151 Comprehensive Plan Amendment
	       ATT_Consultant Memorandum
	       ATT_Existing Land Use and Development Strategy Map
	       ATT_Proposed Land Use and Development Strategy Map
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 2154 Walton Ridge Redesign- PD, Planned Development Rezoning (#ZAPD20-0001)
	       ATT_Walton Ridge PD 51 Amend
	       ATT_Staff Memo - Exhibits B-F



